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BSE Ltd. 
25th Floor, Rotunda Building, 
Dept. of Corporate Services 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
M. S. Marg, 
Mumbai - 400 001. 

Dear Sirs, 

Stock Code - BSf: Code No. 53 1157 

Sub Annual Report for the year 2023-24 and det~ils of 59th AGM 

As informed to you earlier, the next 59th Annual Gensral Meeting of the 
Company will be held on Monday, the 30th September, 2024 at ~:OO p .~ . 
through Video Conferencing ("VC") I Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM ) 
as permitted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI by notlflcattons 
issued by them due to COVID - 19 Pandemic. 

A copy of the 59th Annual Report for the F Y. 2023-24 is attached herewith 
for the information of the members. 

Thanking you . 

Yours faithfully , 
For Organic Coatings Ltd. 

~ \'\ 0 V 

).. ~ \,"l (-

Ajay R. Shah 
Wholetime Director & CFO 
(DIN: 00011763) 

Encl: as above. 

BARODA WORKS 
Block No .. 395, 437, 450, Umraya Village, Taluka Padra, Dis!. Vadodara. Gujarat - 391 440 (INDIA) • Tel. (02662) 244080 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notice 

Notice is hereby given that the 5911" Annual General Meeting of Organic Coatings Lit. Ited will be held on Monday, the 30'" 
September. 2024 at 3.00 p.m. through Video Conferencing ("VC") I Olher Audio Vi, '1al Means ("OAVM") 10 trans2ctthe 
fo llowing businesses 

Ordinary Business: 

,. To consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31"™arch, 2024 
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon and in this regaid, pass the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statemenl of Ihe Company for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024 
and the reports of the Board of Dlreclors and Auditors' Ihereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby 
considered and adapted" 

2 To appOint Mr. AJay R. Shah (DIN. 00011763) who relires by rotation as a 0 rector and In Ihls regard. pass the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resoluhon: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Ihe provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Aiay R. Shah (DIN: 
00011763) who retires by rolat lon al this meeling be and is hereby appoinled c" a Director of Ihe company, liable to 
retire by rotation". 

Special Business: 

3 To appOint Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni (DIN: 02509992) as an Independent Director and in Ihls regard 10 consider, 
and ifthoughl fit, to pass. wi lh orwithoul modificalion(s). the following resolutioll as an Ordinary Resolution : 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant 10 Ihe proviSions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 
(Including any slalutory modification(s) or r.-enaclment thereof for the limo being in force) and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. Mrs. Chllkala U. Kulkarni (DIN: 02509992) who was appo",ted as an Addilional Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors on 23rd May, 2024 and whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting 
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Set;tion 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is h "eby appointed as an Independent 
Drrector of the Company to hold the office for 5 consecutive years for lerm up 10 22nd May, 2029 and shall not be 
tiable to retire by rota ti on". 

4 To re-appoinl Mr. Abhay R. Shah (DIN : 00016497) as Managing Director and in th is regard to consider, and if 
thought fit. to pass , with orwithout modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution : 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuanl to Ihe provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 :"ad with Schedule V and all other 
applrcable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 and the Companies (I ppointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 and Securities & Exchange Board of IndiCJ (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requrrements) Regulations. 2015 (including any slatutory modification(s) or re-anactment thereof forthe time being 
In force), the approval of the Company be and IS hereby accorded to th" re-appointment and paymenl of 
remuneralion to Mr. Abhay R. Shah (DIN . 00016497) as a Managing Directorofthe Company for a period of 5 years 
from 151 Oclober. 2024 to 30th Seplember. 2029 for a remuneration and perquisites up to an amount of Rs. 
3.50 ,0001- p.m.( Excluding perquisites namely Contribution 10 provident fund, ,uperannualion fund or annuity fund, 
gratUity and encashment of leave salary at ttle end of tenure ) as set Qut in the el(planatory statement and as perthe 
terms and conditions including remuneralton laid down in the draft agreeme:ll , placed before this meeting, to be 
enlered inlo belween the company and Mr Abhay R. Shah. Ihe draft whereof is hereby specifically sanclioned with 
liberty. power 10 Board of Drrectors (hereinafter refer to as "Ihe Board" whi·;h term shall be deemed to include 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to vary, modify, alter :I'e terms including the remuneration 
as may be agreed by the Board and Mr. Abhay R. Shah Within Ihe overall limits laid down in Schedule V 10 Ihe 
Companies Act. 2013 or any stalutory modificalion(s) orre-enactmenllhereof' 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby aUlhorized to do ali acts and lake all such steps as may 
be necessary proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution" . 
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5. To re-appoint Mr. Ajay R. Shah (DIN 000117631 as Whole Time Director & CFO and In this regard to consider, and if 
thought fit. to pass, with orwithout modificatron(s), the following resolution as em Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provISions of Sections 196, 197 and 20~ read with Schedule V and all other 
applicable proviSions of the Companies Act, 201 3 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20 14 and Securities & Exchange Board of Indi" (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requrrements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-·,nactment thereof for the time being 
in force), the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to tile re-appointment and payment of 
remuneration to Mr. Ajay R. Shah (DIN 00011763) as a Whole Time Director or the Company for a period of 5 years 
from 15t October, 2024 to 30th September, 2029 for a remuneration ar d perquisites up to an amount of 
Rs 3,50 ,0001- p.m. (Excluding perquisi les namely Contribution to provident fl ·nd, superannuation fund or annuity 
fund. gratu ity and encashment of leave salary al the end of tenure) as set out i" the explanatory statement and as 
per the terms and conditions including remuneration laid down In the draft agrec:ment, placed before this meeting, to 
be entered Into belween the company and Mr AJay R. Shah , Ihe draft whereof i> hereby specifically sanctioned with 
liberty. power to Board of Directors (hereinafter refer to as "the Board" whi,," term shall be deemed to include 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to vary, modify, alter the terms including the remuneration 
as may be agreed by the Board and Mr. Ajay R. Shah with in the overall liroits laid down in Schedule V to the 
Companies Act , 20 13 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof' 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and IS hereby authorized to do ali acts and take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution" , 

Place Mumbai 
Date 10 August, 2024 

Registered Office : 
Unit No 405, Atlanla Estate Premises Co-op. Soc. Ltd , 
Vltth Bhattr. Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai-400063. 
EmaiIIO· organiccoatingsltd@organiccoatingsltd.com 
CIN . L24220MH1965PLC0131S7 

By Orde- orthe Boald of Directors 

Sudhir R. Shah 
Compa"y Secretary 
& Com~'liance Officer 

03 



Organic Coatings Limited 

Notice 

NOTES: 

In compliance with the provisions of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") General Circular No. 09/2023 dated 
25/09/2023 and 10/2022 and 11 /20 22 both dated 28/12/2022 and 02/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 and Securities and 
Exchange Board of Ind ia ("SEBI") Ci rcular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2('.~ 1 / 11 dated 15th January, 2021 and 
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDl/CIRlP/2020179 dated 12th May, 2020 ,he Company will be conducting this 
Annua l General Meeting ("AGM" or "Meeting") through Video Conferencinf:!Other Audio Visual Means ("Vc" I 
"OAVM"), 

Link Intime India PV1 Ltd .. Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company shall bE providing facility for voting through 
remote e-voting, for participation In theAGM Ihrough VC/OAVM facility and e-voling during theAGM. The procedure 
for part icipating In the meeting through VC/OAVM IS explamed at Note No_ 19 be'ow_ 

2 In view of the massive outbreak of Ihe COVIO~ 19 pandemic, social distancing I ~as to be a pre-requisite . Pursuant to 
the above mentioned MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Ihe Members is not reqUired at the AGM and 
attendance of the Members through VC/OAVM wi ll be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
section 103 of the Companies Act 20 13 

3 The re levant details pursuant to regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of SESI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 
on general meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of IndiD , in respect of directors seeking re­
appointmenl at th isAGM is annexed. 

4 Pursuant to the proVISions of the Companies Act, 2013, a member entitled to a~~end and vote at the Annual General 
Meeling (Ihe meeling) is entitled 10 appoinl a proxy to attend and vote on a poll -.o vole instead of his/her behalf and 
the proxy need nol be a member of the company. Since this AGM is being held pllrsuanl to the MCA circulars through 
VC/OAVM. physical allendance of members have been dispensed wilh. Acco"dingly, Ihe facilily for appoinlment of 
proxies by Ihe members will not be available for the AGM and hence, the proxy form and attendance slip are nol 
annexed to this notice , 

5 Institutional! Corporate shareholders (i .e . other than individuals I HUF, NRI etc.) are req uired to send scanned copy 
(PDF I JPEG formal) of its board or governing body resolution lauthori zation dc. aulhorizing ils representalives 10 
attend the AGM Ihrough VC I OAVM on ils behalf and to vote through rerr,ote e-voting. The said resolutions I 
authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer through its registered email f:s.dhanraj@ gmail.com with a copy 
marked to organiccoatingsltd@organiccoatingsltd .com . 

6 In compliance With applicable proVisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Ac\') and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulalions , 2015 ("Listing Regulations") read wi th above mentioned MCA and SEBI 
Circulars. IheAGM of the Company is being conducted Ihrough VC/OAVM. 

In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings Issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India (" ICSI") read with Clarifi ca tion/Guidance on applicability of Secretarial i'tandards -1 and 2 dated 15th April , 
2020 Issued by the ICSI. the proceedings of Ihe AGM shall be deemed 10 be conducted at the Registered Office of 
the Company which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. Since Ihe AGW .,ill be held Ihrough VC/OAVM, Ihe 
Routs Map IS not annexed to this Notice. 

7 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their sharehold""9 maintained under Section 170 of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Register of C ontracts or arrangements in which dire(;tors are interested maintained under 
section 1890fthe CompaniesAcl, 2013, 

8, Mis , Soman Uday & Co, Chartered Accountants were appoinled as Slatulo;-, Auditors of your Company al the 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2022 for a term of five consecutive years to hold the office from 
the conclusion of the said Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of its 62r (; Annual General Meeting i.e. till the 
conclUSion of Annual General Meeting to be held during the year 2027 for cond"~ling statu lory audit for the financial 
years 2022-2310 2026-27. 

9 Members who are holding shares In e lectronic form are requested to intim2te immediately any change in their 
address or bank mandates to the deposltorf participants with whom they ar~ maintaining their demat accounts . 
Members holding shares In physical form are requested to advice any change in their address or bank mandates 
Immedialelyto the Company or 10 Ihe registra r, 

10. The Regisler of Members and the Share Transfer Books of Ihe Company will be closed from 20109/2024 to 
30109/2024 , bolh days inclUSive 

11 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI ) has mandated the submi;;" ion of PermanenlAccount Number 
(PAN ) by every participant In security markets Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested 
to submit the PAN to their DepOSitory PartiCipants with whom they are maintaining their de mat accounts. Members 

04 holding shares in phySical fo rm can submit Ihelr PAN 10 the Company/Registral . 
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12. Members holding shares In single name and physical form are advised to :nake nomination in respect of their 
shareholdlng '" the Company. 

13. Members who have not registered their email addresses so far are requested to register their email address for 
receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. frc r:1 the Company electronically. 

14. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared fe.r the financial year 2009-10 to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Centmt Government. The Company has 
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends lying with the Company on the website of the Company and 
the same can be accessed through the link 
http ://WV1/W.organlccoatingsltd .com/lnvestorRelations/Shareholderslnformati':rl .aspx. The said details have also 
been uploaded on the website of the IEPF Authority and the same c.'" be accessed through the link: 
'W'WW,iepf.gov.in 

t 5 (a) Adhering to the various requirements set out in the Investor Educalio)n and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. as amended, the Company has, during financia l year 
2018-19, transferred to the IEPF Authority all shares in respect of whicr. dividend had remained unpaid or 
unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more as on the due date of transfer, i.e. December 01 , 2017. Details 
of shares transferred to the IEPF Authority are ava ilable on the website of the Company and the same can be 
accessed thro ugh the link 
http: //www.organiccoatingsltd .com/l nvestorRelations/Shareholders lnfoml •• tion .aspx. The said details have 
also been uploaded on the websi te of the IEPF Authority and the same can be accessed through the link: 
www.iepf.gov In. 

(b) Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividends t ransferr~" 10 IEPF Authority can be claimed 
back from them . Conce r ned membe rsli n vestors are arivised to visit the weblink : 
http://epf.gov./n/IEPFAIrefund .htmlorcontactLinklnt/melnd/aPvt.Ltd.fo-lodg/ng claim for refund or shares 
andlord ividend from the IEPF Authority. 

16. SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only n dematerialized form i.e. from 5th 
December, 2018 onwards. In view of Ihe above and to avail various benefils of dematerializalion , members are 
adVised to dematerialize shares held by Ihem in physical form . 

17. Members hold ing shares in physical mode. 

(a) are required to submit their PermanenlAccount Number (PAN) and bank account details to the Company I Link 
Inlime India Pvt. Ltd., if not registered with the Company as mandated by SEBI. 

(b) are advised to register the nomination in respect oftheirshareholding in the Company. 

(c) are requested to register I update their e-mail address with the Comp~ny I Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd . for 
receiving all communications from the Company electronically. 

18 Members holding shares in electronic mode: 

(a J are requested to submit their PAN and bank account details to their respective DPs with whom they are 
maintaining their de mat accounts. 

(b) are advised to contact their respective DPs for registering the nomination. 

© are requested to register I update their e·maH address with their respective D Ps for receiving all 
communications from the Company electronically. 

19. Process and manner for attending the An nual General Meeting through InstaM (~et: 

Open the Internet browser and launch the URL: https:llinstameet.linkintime.co.irl 

.. Select the "Company" and 'Event Date' and register wilh your following detail'5 . 

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit DematAccount No. or Fo!iC No 

Shareholdersl members holding shares In CDSL demat account shall provide 11) Digit Beneficiary ID 

Shareholdersl members holding shares in NSDL demat accounl shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
ClientlD 

Shareholdersl members holding shares In physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company 

B. PAN: Enter youl 1C-dlgn Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who 'lave not updated their PAN with the 
Depository PartiCIpant (DP)lCompany shall use the sequence number provide,j to you. if applicable. 

C. Mobile No .: Enter your mobi le number 
05 

• 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notice 

D EmaillD: Enteryour email id, as recorded with your DP/Company, 

~ Click "Go to Meeting" (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your aUendanc', is marked forthe meeting). 

Please refer the instruction~nnel'lillil forthe software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on the device 
which would be used to attend the meetin . Please ead the instructions careful! and articipate in the meeting. You may 
also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the dedicate¢ number provided to you in the 
instruction!l nstaM E ET website _ 

Instructions for Shareholders/Members 10 Speak durin Ihe Ann al General M~cting Ihrough InslaMeel: 

Shareholders who would like to speak dunng the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with the 
company on the specific email id created for the general meeting. 

2 Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the pnwision made by the client. 

3 Shareholders will receive "speaking serial number" once they mark attendance for the meeting . 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panelist, via active chat·board duri.lq the meeting. 

S Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with pane ,list by switching on video mode and 
audio of your device. 

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/manao.p.ment will announce the name and 
~eqal nurn~er.for speaking , 

Instructions for Shareholders/Members 10 Vole during Ihe Annuat General Mel;I;ng Ihrough InslaMeet : 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/moderator during the meetin!,]. shareholders/members who have 
not exercised their vote through the remote e·voting can cast the vote as under: 

On the Shareholders VC page , click on the link for e-Voting "Cast your vote" 

2 Enler your 16 digit Demat Account No.lFolio No. and OTP (received on the " ,gistered mobile number/registered 
emailld) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit' , 

3 After successful/agin, you will see "Resolution Description" and against the Hlme the option "Favour/Against" for 
voting 

4 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e "Favour/Against" as desired Enter the number of shares (which 
represen ts no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour/Against'. 

5. After selecllng the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you heve decided to vote , click on "Save". A 
confirmation box Will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ·Co 1firm". else to change your vote , click 
on "Back" and accordingly modifyyourvote 

6 Once you confIrm your vote on the resolut ion, you will not be allowed to modify (.I1'change your vote subsequently, 

Note ~ Shareholders! Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting th ,'ough InstaMeet facility and have not 
casted Ihelrvote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not harred from doing so, shall be eligible 
10 vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting . Shareholders/Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting 
pnorto the Annual General Meeting will be eligible 10 attend/participale in the Annual (,eneral Meeting through InstaMeet. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting, 

Shareholders/Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/Lapteas connected through broadband for 
betterexpenence, 

Shareholders/Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid 
any disturbance dunng the meeting 

Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablet,· or through Laptops connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience AUdioNisualloss due to fluctuation in their network It is therefore recommended to use 
stable WI·FI or LAN connection to mitIgate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/members have any queries regarding login/e-votitq , they may send an email 10 
mstameet@IHlklntime.co.lnorconlacton - Tel: 022-49186175. 

InslaMeel Support Desk 

Link Intlme India Private Limited 

Guidelines to attend Ihe AGM proceedings of Link Inlime India Pvt. Ltd_: InslaMfET 

For a smoolh expenence of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intlme India Pvt Ltd InstaMEET, shareholders / 
members who are reglslered as speakers for Ihe event are requested to download Jnd install the Webex application in 
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a) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link https :!!www.webex.com! 
downloads.html! 

O le "'~CQ'" 

.," " .. 

<:) o 
Webex Meetings v f.9bex T earns 

Looking for real time " ideo ccnferencing? Looking for mes~;<lgjng and team collaboration? 

'-. 

• 

• I 
'., ' 

''-'. -.~, .-- . 

Step 1 
Oouble-click the­

~bexapp.m$i file you 
downloaded 

Step 1 
Double-click 

..... ebexapp mSl 
I 

-
Step 2 

The Webex MeennQS sewp 
wiZJrn will launch. FoHow 
the Inst"\.lcUon' to set up. 
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lhe Webe!x Mt'!@tings kon on '{Ow 

desktop. 

• 
Do.1WIlklad Teams VOl 

.5tep 3 
Ot'l(~ installed 

the ili.p wffIlaunctl 
8I,'t'')Il18Ucally. 

* & 3 x 

o I-QI "'* Sign In ... 

x 

rfW~_"''-c..-._ .. ..... -...... .. .--...... -
I Step 3 

~~= ...... ~~'.~ .... ...., lflceinSlalied 
~~pp witllalllch 
.J"Itomatkany, 

To open the a,,!) dlxJble-dick 
the WebeJI Meetings icon CX1 YOlM" 

• 
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Notice 

or 

Step 1 
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I 

II 
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Step 1 
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w~~xapp.msj fll~ 

downloadedl 

-... -~ 

Step 3 
ce lnstalled 
ppwlllla_h 

utomahcaly. 

b) Ilyou do not wanl to download and inslalilhe Webex applicalion, you may join the meeling by following Ihe process 
mentioned as under" 

20. Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode ca n 
regisler directly with the depository or wi ll have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their demat 
accounts. 

rhe vOli ng period begins on 27/09/2024 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 29/09/2C24 (5 .00 p.m.). During this period 
shareholders' ofthe Company, holding shares either in physical form or in demalerialized form , as on the cut-off date 
(record date) of 20.'09/207.4 , may cast their vote elecl ronically. The e-voling n:c dule shall be disabled by CDSL for 
voting thereafter 

Login method for Individual sharehotders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders holding secuntles in demat mode with NSDL 

2 

EXisting IDeAS user can visit the e-Servlces websi te of NSDL viz ... httl)s:lIeservices.nsdl.com either on a 
personal computer or on a mobile On the e-Services home page click ~rl the "Beneficial Owne r" icon under 
"Login"" which is available under 'IDeAS' secllon, this will prompt YOL 10 enler your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication , you wi ll be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services Click on "Access to e-Votlng" under e-Voling services and you Will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Vol ing service provider name i.e. LlNKINTIME and you wi ll be re-directed to 
"lnslaVole" webSite I.orcasllng your vote during Ihe remOle e-Voting perice:. 

II. you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services. option 10 register is avai lable at hllps:lleserv ices,nsdl.com 
Select "Regis t er Online for I De AS Co rta l" o r cl i ck at 
hllps.lleservlces .nsdl com/SecureWeblideasDirectReg.Jsp 
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the folloving URL: https:lleservices.nsdl.com 
either on a personal computer or on a mobile . Once the home page of e-V!)ting system is launched, click on the 
icon "Login" 

Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and EmaillD and click on Join Now. 
-------------------

1 {A} If you have already Installed the Webex application on your device, join ttl~' meeting by clicking on Join Now 

1 (B) If Webex application is not Installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to 
chrome or Run a temporary application . 

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Clicl~ on this exe file to run the application 
and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 

which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open . You will have to enter your 
User 10 (i .e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL) Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will b, redirecled to NSDL DepOSitory site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e- voting service provider name I.e . 
LlNKINTIME and you will be redirected to "lnslaVote" website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
penod. 

2 IndiVidual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

EXisting users who have opted for Easi I Easiest, can login through their ~'se r id and password . Option will be 
made avai lable to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi I 
Easiest are https:llweb.cdslindla,com/myeasi/hame/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasl, 

2. After successful login ofEasl/Easieslthe user wil l be able to see the E Vollng Menu. The Menu will have links of 
e-Votlng service provider i.e LlNKINTIME. Click on LlNKINTIME and you will be redirected to "lnstaVole" 
websile lor casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period . 

3. If the user is not registered for Eas il Easiest , option to reg is ter is available at 
htlps :/Iweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration . 

4 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing d~' mat account number and PAN No. 
from a link In www.cdslindia.com home page . The system will authertcate the user by send ing OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded In the demat Account. After su.';:essful authentication , user will be 
provided links for the respective ESP i e. LINK INTI ME. Click on LlNKI"'TlME and you will be redirected 10 
"lnstaVote" webSite for casting you rvote during the remote e-Voting perio,. 

3. Individual Shareholders (holding securities In demat mode) login through theird"pository participants 

You can also login uSing the login credentials of your demat account through yo·) :" Depository Participant registered 
with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to SE" e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDLlCDSL DepOSitory site after successful au 'hentication, wherein you can see e­
Voting fealure . Click on company name or a-Voting service provider name i.e. LlNKINTIME and you will be 
redirected to "lnstaVote"website for casting your vote during the remote e-VotilllJ period. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical fe :ml Non-Individual Shareholders 
hold ing securities in demat mode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders of the company. holding shares in physical form I Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in de mat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility ofL·rlk Intime as under: 

1. Open the Internet browser and launch the URL' https:llinstavote.linkintime.co.i i 

2 Click on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with yourfollowiog details:­

A . UserlD: 

Shareholders holding shares in phySical form shall proVide Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 
Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demal account shall provide 8 Characte ' DP 10 followed by 8 Digit Client 10; 
Shareholders holding shares in CDSLdemat account sha ll provide 16 Digit Ben.,ficiary 10. 

B. PAN: Enter your 1 O-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have nol updated their PAN wilh 
the Depository Partici?ar! (DP)I Company shall use the sequence number proviJed to you, if applicable . 

C. DOB/DOI : Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) 1 Date of Incorporation (001 ) (As recorded with your DP I Company - in , 
DD/MMlYyYYformat ) Og 
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D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), uS recorded with your DP/Company. 

'Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and '0' , shall provide their Folio number in 
'O'above 

'Shareholders holding shares In NSDL form , shall provide '0' above 

• Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimu" l 8 characters, at least one special 
Character (@!#$&'), at least one numeral , at least one alphabet and alieast one capital letter) , 

• Click "confirm" (You r password is now generated) . 

3. Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab. 

4 Enter your User 10, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and ciicl, on 'Submit'. 

Cast your vote electronically: 

After successful log in, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting . Seleel 'View' icon. 

2 E-voting page will appear 

3 Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired ,')tion 'Favour / Against' (If you wish 
to vtewthe enbre Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution' file link), 

4 After selecting the desired option i.e . Favour I Against, click on 'Submit' , Acor.firmation box will be cisplayed . If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes' , else to change your vote, click on 'No' 6~ld accordingly modify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders : 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. olher than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodia,," are required to log on the e-voting 
system of LlIPL at https:llinstavote.linkintime.co,in and regiGter themselves as 'Cui todian I Mutual Fund / Corporale 
Body' They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of 
attorney elc. together with attested specimen signalure of the duly authorised rep'esentative(s) in PDF formal in the 
'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' login forthe Scrulinizer to verify the ",'Ine. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ lnstHulional shareholders: 

Shareholders facing any technical Issue in login may contact link Inti me INSTAV(" r :: helpdesk by sending a request at 
enotlces@llnklntime.co.lnor contacton : - Tel: 022 - 491 8 6000_ 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respecth e helpoesk for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository I.e. NSDLand CDSL. 

Login type 

Individual Shareholders holding 
seCUrities in demat mode with NSDL 

Individual Shareholders holding 
seCUrities In demat moae with CDSL 

Helpdesk details 

Members facing any technical issue in loyin can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a requesl at evoting@nsdl. c<) ,io or call at toll free no .: 1800 
1020990 and 1800224430 

Members faCing any technical issue in ICo!]in can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sendleg a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia .com or contact at 022-
23058738 or 22- 23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholelers holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the : assword: 

If an Ind ividual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the .JSER 10 [Login 10] or Password or 
both then Ihe shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option available on tce e-Voting website of Link Intime: 
https /f1nslavote ilnklntime.co.ln 

a Click on 'Logi'" und~r 'SHARE HOLDER' lab and further Click 'forgot p i ~sword?' 

o Enler User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verifica tion code (CAPTCHA I, Click on "SUBMIT" 

In case shareholder IS haVing valid email address, Password will be sent to bi; I her registered e-mail address. 
Shareholders can set the pdssword of his/her chOice by proViding the information :lbout the particulars of the Security 
Quesllon and Answer, PAN. 009/0 01, f3an~ Account Number (last four digits) etc. ilS mentioned above, The password 
should contain mmlnll !m 8 characters at least one speCial character (@!#$3: ), ~Jt least one numeral . at least one 
alphabet and at least one cap.tal leUer 
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User 10 for Shareholders holding shares in Ph:,Lsll'al Form (Le. Share Certi ficate)" Your User 10 is Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company 

Indiv idual Shareholders holding securilies in demal mode with NSOL/ COSL h",; forgotten Ihe password: 

Shareholders who are unable to retneve User 101 Password are advised to use F(cget User 10 and Farget Password 
option available at abovementioned depositoryl depository participants website. 

,. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other pt~ rson and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. 

:,... For shareholdersl members holding shares in physical form . the details can be used only for voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

,. During Ine voting penod , shareholders! members can login any numbo: of time till they have voted on the 
resolution(s) for a part icular "Event" 

InSlaVole Support Oesk 

Link Intime India Private Limiled 

21 . Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the companies act, 2013 setting out material facts additional 
Information concerning each item of special business is annexed 

22. SCRUTINIZER FOR E-VOTING : Ms. Ohanraj Kothari, Practicing Compacy Secretary (Membership No. FCS 
4930) has been apPointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process ie, a fair and transparent manner. 

Place: Mumbar 
Date 10" August. 2024 

Registered Office : 
Unit No. 405, Allan ta Estate Premises Co'op. Soc. Ltd., 
Vilth Bhaltl. Garegaon (East), 
Mumbal - 400 063. 
EmaiI IO: organiccoatingsltd@organiccoatingsltd.com 
CIN : L24220MH 1965PLC013187 

By Ord!r of Ihe Board of Directors 
Sudhir Il . Shah 
Com par y Secretary 
& Comr,!iance Officer 

11 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMP/INIES ACT, 2013 SETTING OUT 
MATERIAL FACTS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING EACH I" EM OF SPECIAL BUSINESS IN 
THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE 

Item 3 

Information about the apPointee 

Name of the Director Mrs. Chltkala U. Kulkarn i -
Date of Birth 23/0711981 

Date of AppOintment 23/05/2024 

Exper1lse In specific functional areas Accounting & Auditing 

Qualifications B.Com, Sydenham College of Commerce & Economics. 
Chartered Accountant , Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. LL.B., Government to3W College 

No of shares held in Organic Coatings Ltd . NIL 

Directorship In other Companies Director of The National C.)0perative Bank Ltd. (2010-till date) 

DISclosure of relationship -

Membership of Committees in other Public Limited Companies: 

Aud it Committee NIL 

Shareholders' I Investors' Grievance NIL 

Mrs Chit kala U. Kulkarni was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board w.e. '. 7.3" May, 2024, pursuant to Section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Secllon 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Chitkal~ U. Kulkarni will hold office upto the 
date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in w,iting under the provisions of Section 
160 of the Companies Act , 2013 , from a member proposing the candidature of Mrs '';hitkala U. Kulkarni for the office of 
Independent Director to be appointed as such under the provisions of Section 149 of :l1e Companies Act, 2013 . 

The Company has received from Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni: 

I) Consent In wnting to act as a Director in Form OIR 2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and 
qualification o!Dlrectorsl Rutes 2014 

II) Intlmallon In DIR 8 1n terms of Companies (Appointment and qual ification o!Directors) Rules 2014to the effect 
that she is not d isqualified under sub·section 2 of Section 164 of the CornpcniesAct, 2013 and. 

II I) Adeclaratlon to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as p·ovided in SUb-section (6) of Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Resolution seeks that the approval of members for the appointment of Mrs. Chi\kala U. Kulkarni as an Independent 
Director of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive years from 23" May, 2024 to 22~ May, 2029 pursuant to Section 149 
and other applicable prOVISions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed the-eunder. She is not liable to retire by 
rotat ion 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors. Mrs. Chllkala U. Kulkarni , the Non·Executive Independent Director proposed to 
be appointed fulfils the conditions speCi fied in the act and the rules made thereur der and she is independent of the 
Management. 

A copy of the draft leller for the appointment of Mrs Chitkala U. Kulkarni as Non-Executive Independent Director selling 
out the terms and conditions is available for inspection at the company's registered c.ffice during normal working hours on 
the working days up to the date of Annual General Meeting. 

No Director, key managenal personnel orthelr relatives. except Mrs. Chitkala U. Kul"<arm, to whom the resolution relates , 
IS Interested or concerned In the resolut ion 

The Board recommends the resolution set forth In lIem NO.3 and for the approval oftha members . 

None of the Directors I Key Managenal Personnel of the Company I their relat i\ "es are , in any way, concerned or 
Interested, financially or ot~erwlse. In Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the f\lotice 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at lIem No. 3 olthe Notice for dpproval by the shareholders. 
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Item 2,4 &5 
Information about the appointee 

-
Name of the Director Mr. Abhay R. Shah Mr.l~ay R. Shah 

Date of Birth 13/0711 966 21/0./1968 
-

Date of Appointment 01 110/1994 01108/1998 

Expertise in specific functional areas Markellng & Produclion Planning ACCOu1tS & Finance functions of the Company 

Qualifications B.Sc Diphlla in Computer Engnn . 

No. of shares held in Organic Coatings Ltd. 8.01.632 (1045%) 6.38 .jS2 (8.32%) 
-

Directorship :n other Companies All India Printing Inks NIL 
Manufacturer's Association Ltd . 

Mr. Abhay R. Shah is related to Mr. " jay R.Shah is related to Mr. Abhay R. 
DIsclosure of relationship Mr. Ajay R. Shah , Wholetime Shall, Managing Director of the 

" ________________________________ D_'_re_c_to_r_& __ C_F_O_. ______________ c_om_.~ a_n~y~. ____________________ ___ 

Membership of Committees in other Public limited Companies: 

Audit Committee NIL NIL 

Shareholders' 1 Investors' Grievance NIL 

The Board of Directors afthe Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Ren"uneration Committee, at its meeting 
held on 10' August , 2024 re-appointed Mr. Abhay R. Shah as Managing Director and Mr. Ajay R. Shah as Whole Time 
Director & CFO both for a period of 5 years from 1" October. 2024 to 30· Septemb~r, 2029 subject to approval of the 
shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting on the following remuneration and other terms and 
conditIons 

The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director & CFO will be given r',inimum annual increment of 10% of 
the baSIC salary with in the overall limits prescribed under Schedule V to the Compani'3SAct, 2013 as amended. However, 
the Board of Directors will have discretion to consider on merit basis, higher incremel"lt taking into account the company's 
performance and subject to ceiling of 10% of the baSIC salary which shall be with;n the overall limits prescribed under 
Schedule V to the Companies Act . 2013 ( Excluding perquiSites namely Contributi( I', to provident fund, superannuation 
fund or annuity fund , gratuity and encashment of leave salary at the end of tenure for ::oth) as amended. 

Mr. Abhay R. Shah. Managing Director and Mr. Ajay R Shah. Wholetime Director & CFO shall be en Ii tied for the following 
perquIsites and benefits' 

1) LTA: The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director & CFO s"',all be entitled to reimbursement of 
actual leave travel expenses once in a year for themselves and their family to al11 destination in India by air/railfroad , 
however which shall not exceed one month's baSIC salary plus HRA respectivel~ . 

2) Club Fees : The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director & Cf'C' shall be entitled to reimbursement 
of fees towards membership of 2 clubs. However, they shall not be entitled to reimbursement of any admission 
and/or fees payable towards life membership 

3) Telephone: The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director & CFO shall be ent itled for mobile phones 
for local ca lls and long distance calls. 

4) Personal Accident Insurance: The aforesaid Managing Director and the WholF.t:me Director & CFO shall be entitled 
for personal aCCident insurance the premium of which shall be limited to Rs. 4 ,4001- p.a. for each of them . 

5) ProVident Fund: The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director 5. CFO shall be entitled to company's 
contribu tion towards provident fund as per the ru les of the Company. 

6) Gratuity The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director & C: FO shall be entitled to payment of 
gratuity wherever applicable as per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and arrBnded from time to time as per the 
rules of the company 

7) Leave Encashmenl. The aforesaid Managing Director and the Wholetime Director & CFO shall be entitled for leave 
encashmenl of accumulated leave standing to their cred it encashable at thE end of their tenure. which shall not 
lapse dUring their tenure 

8) Car' The aforesaid Managing Director and Ihe Whole time Director & CFO will bt, provided with chau ffeur driven cars 

by the Company, which shall be used by them for official purposes only. 
13 
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9) The aforesaid Managing Director and Wholetime Director & CFO shall not be e~\itled to any sitting fees for attending 
the meetrngs of the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee or con1mittees thereof. 

10) The aforesaid Managing Di rector and Wholetime Director & CFO shall not so long as they function as such , become 
interested or othervvlse concerned directly or through their wives/minor cri!dren in any selling agency of the 
Company in future without the prior approval of the appropriate authority under ,J'e Companies Act, 2013 . 

The above remunerations are well Within the limits speCified in Sections 198 and Sch , dule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST 

Mr Abhay R Shah and Mr. Ajay R. Shah are brothers and are related to each oth,·r. Accordingly, each of them may be 
deemed to be interested or concerned in the resolutions at Item No. 4 & 5. 

The copies of the draft agreements for the re-appointments and payment of remuneration thereof with Mr. Abhay R. Shah 
and Mr Ajay R. Shah are open for inspection by the members at the registered office cf the Company on any working days 
between 11.00 a .m. and 1.00 pm. 

Place Mumbai 
Date 10" August , 2024 

Registered Office : 
Unit No 405, Atlanta Estate Premises Co-op. Soc. Ltd , 
Vitth Bhatti , Goregaon (East), 
Mumbal - 400 063 
Emalllo· organiccoalingsltd@organiccoatingsltd .com 
CIN L24220MH1965PLC013187 

By Ord~r olthe Board of Directors 
Sudhir R. Shah 
Compaoy Secretary 
& Compliance Officer 



Financial Highlights 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

Sales (Nel) 2683.40 2289.51 

Other Income 6.51 16.67 

Profil / (Loss) before Finance costs, 190.52 152.60 
Depreciation and amortisation expense. 
exceptional items and lax 

Financecosls 144.83 149.37 

Profil / (Loss) before Depreclalion and 45.69 3 .23 
amortisation expense, exceptional items 
and lax 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 93 .04 98.27 

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items (47 .35) (95 .04) 
and tax 

Exceptional items 

Profit / (Loss) before tax (47 .35) (95.04) 

Tax Expense 

Proflt/(Loss) for the year (47 .35) (95.04) 

Other ComprehenSive Income (1.87) 0.98 

Total comprehensive Income for the year (49 .22) (94 .06) 

EqUity Share Capital 767.46 76746 

Reserve and Sruplus (648.22) (599 .00) 

Net Worth (Excluding Revaluation (67.67) (18 .44) 
Surplus) 

20:' 1-22 

220,>'97 

1J.59 

5/.08 

147 .01 

(89.72) 

1 U7.49 

(19; .21) 

(19; '.21) 
-
3.02 

(20( .23) 

1.24 

(198.99) 

75: .46 

(5C4 .94 ) 

75 .62 
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(Rs In lacs) 

2020-21 2019-20 

1404.90 2753.55 

5.23 39.66 

53.38 194 .92 

138.79 117.54 

(85.41 ) 77.38 

129.76 128.68 

(215.17) (51.30) 

(215.17) (51.30) 

(215.17) (51.30) 

1.95 (0 .14) 

(213.22) (51 .44) 

767.46 767.46 

(305.95) (92.73) 

274.61 487 .82 

15 
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Board's Report 

Oear members . 

The Board of Directors IS pleased to present the Company's 59th Annual Report acd the Company's Audited Financial 
Stalements for the financial year ended March 31 2024 

1. Financial results 

The Company's financial performance forthe year ended March 31 , 2024 is summar,: ed below: 

Revenue from operations 

Operating expenditure 

Profit before Interest. Depreciation, Tax 

Less Fmance Cost 

Profltl(Loss) after Finance Cost 

Less Depreciation 

Profit (Loss) for the year before tax 

Add ExcepllOnalltems 

Profit/{Loss) forthe year after exceptional Items and before tax 

Less Income Tax 

Profit/CLoss) after tax 

Addl(Less ): Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

2. Company's performance and state of affairs 01 the company 

2023 - 24 

(Rs. in Lacs) 

2689.91 

2499.39 

190.52 

144.83 

45.69 

93,04 

(47.35) 

(47.35) 

(47.35) 

(1 .87) 

(49.22) 

2022-23 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

2306.18 

2153.58 

t52.60 

149.37 

3.23 

98.27 

(95.04) 

(95.04) 

(95.04) 

0.98 

(94.06) 

• Revenue from operations (net) increased by 16 .64 % to Rs. 2689.91 Lacs fu m Rs. 2306.18 Lacs in the previous 

year 

• PBDIT Increased by 2".86 % to Rs. 190.52 Lacs forthe year ended 31st Malch, 2024 compared to previous year 
Rs 152.60 Lacs 

• Total comprehensive (loss) decreased by 47 .68 % to Rs . (49.22) Lacs for the year ended 31st March , 2024 
compa red to prevIous yearRs . (94.06) Lacs . 

3. Dividend and transferto reserves 

In v 'ew of the loss. the Board of Directors is unable to recommend any dividen1 fur the financial year 2023·24 and no 
amount lS transferred to Reserves for the financial year 2023-24. 

4. Material changes affecting the company 

There have been 110 material changp.s and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between 
end of the financial year and date of this report There has been no change in th~ , lature of business of the company. 

5. Management Discussion and Analysis Statement and Corporate Governance Report 

The statement on management discussion and analysis, forms part of the annU<:'l1 report is provided inAnnexure I. 

Regulation 15(2) of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Oblig,, ;ions & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulat,o"s, 2015 IS not apphcable to the Company since the Company's pai.:.-up capital is less than Rupees Ten 
Crores and nel worth is less than Rupees Tweoty Five Crores as prescribed un 'erthe said regulation and hence the 
prOVIsions re lating to the Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Cornpc r ~ ':, hence no Corporate Governance 
Report is given by the Company as a part of the Director's Report . 

6. Secretarial Standards 

The Dlrectcrs slate that the applicable Secretan31 Standards 1.8. SS-1 and !;S-2 relating to the 'Meetings of the 
Board of DlreCIOrS' and 'General Meelings', respectively have been duly folioM,,1 by the Company. 
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7. Oirector's Responsib ility Statement 

Your Directors state that. 
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a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 3' , 2024, the applicable accounting 
standards read wi th requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act h,we been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same; 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them c,' :lsistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and (tl tr view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31 , 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Companyf0rthe year ended on that date ; 

c) the Directors have taken proper and suffiCient care for the maintenanCH of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the proVisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of ~he Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and othertrregulanties; 

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basi~; 

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed b'/ the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating; and 

f) the Directors have revised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all appl icable laws were 
In place and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

8. Contracts and arrangements with related parties 

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the fin3ncial year with related parties were 
In ord inary course of business and on arms length basis and that the provisicns of Section 188 of the Companies 
Act. 2013 are not attracted , The disclosure in Form AOC-2 is provided inAnnew re II. 

The Pol iCY on materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Rel~ted Party Transactions as approved 
by the Board may be access on materin the Company's website at: www.organtgcoatingsltd .com 

Members may refer to Noie No. 32 to the financial statement which sets out rel~lt~d party disclosures pursuant to Ind 
AS. 

9. Corporate Socia l Responsibility (CSR) 

The provISions re laUng to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company. 

10. Risk Management 

The Risk Management Policy has been framed , implemented and monitored , Majorrisk identified by the businesses 
and functions are systematically monitored through mitigating actions on cantil'll 'ing basis . 

The development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy has been c)vered in Management Discussion & 
AnalYSIS which fonms part of this report. 

11. Internal Financial Controls 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference t.) the financial statements . During the 
year such controls were tested and no reportable material wea kness in the design or operation was observed . 

12. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr AJay R. Sha~ , Director of the Comoany relires by rotat ion and being eligible eflers himselffor re-appointment. 

Ms Ashwini Lad. Independent Director of the Company ceased to be Director )f the Company on completion of her 
21erms of 5 years each as an Independent Director of the Company w,e,f. 30· ~""y, 2024, Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni 
has been appointed as an Addit ional and Independent Director of the Comp.Jny by the board of directors w.e.f, 
23' May. 2024 for a penod or 5 consecutive years and she holds the office urtil the date of the conclusion of the 
ensu,ng Annual General Meeting. The board of directors has proposed appoint nent of Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni as 
a Director and Independent DIrector by passing Ordinary Resolution by the shareholders in the accompanying 
notice 

As per the proviSions of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors he"e been appointed for a period of 5 
years and shall not be liable to reti re by rotation , The Company has received declaration from all the Independent 
Directors of the Company confirming that th ey meet the cri tena of independence prescribed under the act and the 
listing regulat ions 

The terms of appointment of Mr Abhay R. Shah as a Managing Director ar d Mr Ajay R. Shah as a Wholetime 
Director & CFO IS expIring on 30 September, 2024 and are being proposed fer their re -appolntments by proposing 
Ordinary Resolut ions for their appointments and payment of remuneration a:~ laid down therein and explanatory 17 
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fhe following are the remuneration policies for tne Directors , Key Managerial P~rsonnel and other employees. 

a Introduction - Organic Coatings limited recognizes the importance of i1 ~ igning the business objectives with 
specific and measurable individual objectives and targets. The company has therefore formulated the 
remuneration policy for Its directors, key personnel and other employees keeping in view the following 
objectives. 

ensuring that the level and compensation of remuneration is rease-nable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate to run the company successfully. 

ii ensunng that rela tionship of remuneration to performance is (lear and meets the performance 
benchmarks 

b Policy -

I. The Board on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Sommittee (NRC) shall review and 
approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors of th~ Company within the overall limits 
approved by the shareholders 

II. The Board on the recommendation of NRC shall also review and z:)prove the remuneration payable to 
the Key Managerial Personnel. 

iii. The remuneration structure to the Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel shall 
include the following: 

a) BaSIC pay 

b) Perquisites and allowance 

c) Retiral benefits 

d) Bonus 

iv. Remuneration to Non·Executive Directo rs 

The Board on the recommendation of NRC shall review and approve the remuneration payable to the 
Non·Executlve Directors of the Company. 

The Non-Executive Directors shall be ent itled to sitting fees for aile "ding the meetings of the Board and 
the Committees Ihereof 

v) Remuneration to other employees 

Employees are assigned grades according to thei r qualifications ano work experience , competencies as 
well as their roles and responsibilities In the organization . Individual remuneration shall be determined 
within the appropriate grade and shall be based on various fac~,>rs such as job profile, skills sets, 
senionty, expe rience and prevail ing remuneration levels for equivah~'1t jobs. 

13. Meetings olthe Board 

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year 2023-24 on '0105/2023, 14/08/2023, 11 /11/2023 
and 12102/2024. 

14. Performance Evaluation 

15. 

The Company has deVised a policy for performance evaluation of the 60ald, Committees and other individual 
directors (including Independent Directors) which include criteria for performcrce evaluation of the Non·Executive 
and Executive Directors. The evaluation process inter-alia considers attencl::mce of the Directors at Board and 
Committee Meetings, acquaintance with bUSiness , communicating interse bo::;rd members , effective participation, 
domain knowledge , compliance w1th code of conduct, reason and strategy. 

The detailed programs for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights and 
responsibilities In the Company, nature of the industry in which Ihe Compacy operates, business model of the 
Company are being shared and discussed 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors' was held during the year 2023-2" ,;n11 " November, 2023 

Policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other details 

The Board of DIrectors has framed a poliCY which lays down a framework in r~ lation 10 remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Mar1agemen: of the Company. Thlf: policy also lays down criterta for 
selection and apPointment of Board Members keeping In mind the relevanl proviSions of the Companies Acl, 20 t 3 
read wltl1 specIfic rules 
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The details In respect of internal financial conlrol systems and their adequa.::y are included in the management 
discussion and analysIs which forms part Oftl1is report . 

17. Audit Committee 

The audit committee consists of the following members of the Board of Director,:;: 

a) Ms.AshwlniY Lad (IndependentDi reclor)- Chairperson 

b) Mr DipakkumarK Kanabar (I ndependent Direclor) 

C) Mr AshwJnkumar H. Raval (I ndependent Direclor) 

d) Mr A,ay R Shah (Wholellme Dlreclor & CFO) 

DUring the financial year 2023-24 . four audit cOr1millee meelings were held on ' ·010512023. 14108/2023, 1 ~ 1 11 12023 

and 1210212024. 

18. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination & Remuneralton Committee conSists of all the Independent Uirectors consisting of the following 
members of the board of directors: 

a) Mr Dlpakkumar K. Kanabar (Independen! Director - Chairman) 

b) Ms. Ashwlnl Lad (Independent Director) 

c) Mr Ashwinkumar H. Raval (Independent Director) 

Du ring the financia l year2023-24 , one Nomination & Remuneration Committ6e Oleeting was held on 1410812023. 

19. Stakehotders Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Commillee consists of the following Directors: 

a) Mr Ashwinkumar H. Raval (Independent Director - Chairman) 

b) Mr Dlpakkumar K Kanabar (I ndependent Director) 

c) Ms Ashw'nI Lad (Independent Director) 

d) Mr. Abhay R. Shah (Managing Director) 

During the financial year 2023-24 , one Stakeholders Relationship Committee n"eting was held 0111410812023. 

20. Independent Dire~tor's Meeting 

One meeting of the Independent ::lirectors was held on t1111 12023. 

21. Auditors and auditors' report 

Statutory Auditors 

Mis. Soman Uoay & Co. Chartered Accountants were appointed as StatutOlY Auditors of your Company at the 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2022 for a term of five con'"cutive years to hold the office from 
the conclusion of the said Annual General Meeting tililhe conclusion of its 62r:L! Annual General Meeting i.e. till the 
conclusion of Annua l General Meeting to be held during the year 2027 for concL,:ting statutory audit forthe financial 
years 2022-23 to 2026-27. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing 3S Auditors of the 
Company 

rhe Report given by the Audilors on the financial statement of the Company is ~art of this report. There has been no 
quallficallon. reservation adverse remarK ordlsclalmerglven by the Auditors in meirReport. 

Secretarial Auditor 

The Board has appointed D.Kothari &Assoclates, Practicing Company Secret;" ies to conduct the Secr6tarial Audit. 
The Secretarial Audi t Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 I ~ annexed herewith and marked as 
Annexure III to thiS report The Secretanal Audit Report does not contain ary qualification, reservation, adverse 
remark or d isclaimer 

22. Vigil mechanism 

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also includes Whistle Blower Polic\', includes an ethics and compliance 
task force compnslng senior executives of the Company Protected disclosures can be made by Whistle Blower _ 
through an email or letter to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No person has been denied access to the Audit 19 
Committee 
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23. Particulars of loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and secu rities provided 

The Company has not given any loans or made any investments or provided gl :;rantees uls 186 of the Companies 
Acl,2013. 

24. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earni ngs and outgo. 

The particulars related to conservation of energy, technology absorption, fore-un exchange earnings and outgo as 
reqUired to be disclosed under the act are provided in Annexure IV to this report 

25. Annual return 

The annual relurn of Ihe Company has been placed on the website of the ~ompany and can be accessed at 
w\vw organiccoatingsltd.com 

26. Particulars of employees and related disclosures 

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, KMPs and employees as required under Section 197 of 
Ihe CompanIes Act, 2013 read wIth Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules 2014 are given in Annexure V 10 this report . 

The Company does not have any employee whose particulars are required 10 tf. disclosed in terms of the provisions 
of SectIon 197(12) of Ihe acl read wilh Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies ~Appoinlmenl and Remuneralion of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, hence furnishing of the same does nolari'B . 

HavIng regard 10 the provisions of Ihe firsl proviso 10 Seclion 136(1 ) of Ihe act, Ihe annual report excluding Ihe 
Informatoon regarding the top ten employees IS being sent to Ihe members of the Company. The said information is 
available for inspection on all working days during the business hours at the r" gistered office 01 the Company. Any 
member interested in obtaining such information , may write to the Company Secretary and the same shall be 
furnished on request. 

27. General 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting required in respect of tho following items as there were no 
transactions on these items dunng the year under review. 

1) DetaIls relating 10 deposits covered urider Chapter V 01 the act. 

2) Issue of Equity Shares 10 differential rights as to dividend, voting orotherw;se . 

3) Issue 01 shares (including sweat equily shares) to employees of the Company. 

4) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, hence , the question of rec.eiving remuneration or commission 
by the Managing Directors or Whole Time Directors of the Company from t'1e subsidiaries does not arise. 

5) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Court.s :.J rTribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company's operation in the future . 

6) No fraud has been reported by the auditors to IheAudit Committee orthe Iloard. 

Your Directors further state that during the year under review there were nc, r.ases fil ed pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassmenl olWomen alWorkplace (Prevention, Prohibilion and Redressal),\ CI, 2013. 

28. Acknowledgement 

Your Directors would like to express the sincere appreciation for the assistar ce and co-operation received from 
Shareholders , Bank of Maharashtra, Government Authorities and other Bu~iness constituents during the year 
under review 

Your Directors would also hke to appreclale the commltmenl displayed by the h' I'11an resources of the Company. 

Place Mumbal 
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On behalf ,)[ the Board of Direclors 

Abhay R. S11ah 
Managing Jirector 
(DIN:0001Ii.197) 

Ajay R. Sheh 
Wholelime Oireclor & CFO 
(DIN '0001 1763) 
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The Financial year 2023-24 will go down In India's economic hislory as an unprecedenled one wilh huge fluclualions in 
fortune. 

Ink industry is having great cha llenges and competi tion, more so from multinational Gompanies . Raw material price also 
plays a major factor for competitive price offerings to the customers and thereby to capture the market share . 

The Union Budget doubled down on Ihe inveslmenl orienled strategy focusing (1,1 capital expenditure to kickstart a 
"VirtuouS cycle of investment" while crowding in private investments The return of ullcerta inty clouded the global macro 
economic and financial landscape even as the global economy struggled to recoverfr ')m the pandemic. 

The Indian economy 15 estimated to have grown by 8.9% during the financial yee-,r aided by a favorable base but the 
economic recovery across the Sectors was uneven . 

Opportunities and Threats 

The newspaper and magazine circulations fall , advertising revenues are incre..3singly diverted from print to other 
channels, especially Internet channels, facebook etc. These trends will result in a glooal decline in consumption of inks . 

Company IS visualizing facing major threat from Multmational Companies existing a~~ well as new ones with their financial 
and technological strength 

Segment·wise or Product·wise Performance 

The Company is mainly dealing wi th inks and its auxiliaries only. 

Outlook, Risk and Concerns 

Company should be able to Improve the efficiency and effectiveness of all the ope-ations at Vadodara Plant including 
Improvement in labour productivity. 

As the world economy is ful l of challenges and competition , Company is facing risks:n terms of Strategy, Operations and 
Financial reporting and increasing compliances. Competition from multinational conl'Janies is a major factor to be looked 
Into Geo-political scenario like situation in China , Saudi Arabia , Iraq , Iran, Yemer; and Afghanistan may change the 
landscape for Raw Material prices, Exports etc. in the time to come . Change in tax laws more so about GST, interesl rate 
structure, Governmenl policies etc . may Impact your company's business. 

Internal Control systems and their Adequacy 

The Internal Control system including of financial of the company is established to el1 ,ure that all assets are safeguarded 
and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition to ensure that tranS3~tions are authorized , recorded and 
reported correctly and that opera tions are conducted in an efficient and cost effective manner. Company has appointed 
an independent firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out the work of Internal Audit. Their reports are put and discussed 
In !heAudlt Committee regularly Company is also taking guidance for constant impro'/ement in the operations. 

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance 

• PBDIT Increased by 24 86% to Rs. 190.52 Lacs for the year ended 31 st March, :!024 compared to previous year Rs. 
152.60 Lacs. 

• Total comprehensive (loss) decreased by 47 .68% to Rs. (49.22) Lacs for the year ended 31st March , 2024 compared to 
preVIOus year Rs (94 .06) Lacs. 

• Revenue from operations (net) increased by 16.64% to Rs. 2689 .91 Lacs from Rs. ;>;J06.18 Lacs in the previous year. 

Matenal consumption has been Increased to 75 96% as compared to 75 .13% in the ~ rf.'Vl0US year. 

Employee benefits expenses have been decreased to 3.28% as compared to 3.59% t'1 the previous year. 

Finance cost forthe year decreased to Rs. 144 .83 Lacs from Rs . t49.37 Lacs in the pr.vious year. 

Depreciation charged at Rs 93.04 Lacs as against Rs. 98.27 Lacs In the previous yea·. 

Material Developments in human Resources !Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed 

Due to impact of globalizallon , the role of Human Resource (HR\ is having more relevance . There is shortage of talented 
and committed people across industnes . Your Company is trying best within its c.wn limitation to move further in this 
regard looking to its nature of operations and requi rements . Management would like to thanK all the existing as well as 
past employees for their va luable support In difficul t economic conditions . The compsny has 48 permanent employees as 
on 31·' March. 2024. 

Cautionary Statement 

The report conlarns forward looking statements thai Involve risks and uncertaintief:. when used in this discussion, the 
words like 'plans' 'exper.ts' 'anticipates'. 'believes', 'Intends', 'estimates' or other :3imilar expressions as they relate to 
company or its bUSiness are intended to Identify such forward-looking statements . These statements are based on certain 
assumptions and expectations of future events . The company's actuat results, perfcrmance or achievements could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looki ng statements. 2~ 
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FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014). 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by ale company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2( '13 inctuding certain arm's length 
transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length b;I):.!-.is -

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions enlered into durir.g the year ended 31" March, 2024 , 
which were not at arm's length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's lendth basis · 

There were not matenal contracts or arrangements or transactions for the year ended 31"1 March, 2024 as per the 
fjrovlslons of the Companies Act. 2013. Thus lhis disclosure is not applicable. 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 10" August , 2024 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Abhay R. ~; .1 ah 

Managing Director 
(DIN:0001,,497) 

Ajay R. Sh,.h 
Wholetim.e Director & CFO 
(DIN:000 1 ~ 163) 
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To , 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH. 2024 

[Pursuanl to seclion 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule NO.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141 

The Members , 

Organic Coatings Limited 
Unit No 405 , Atlanta Estate Premises Co-op Soc Ltd 
Vltth Bhatti, Near Virwani Industrial Estate , 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbal - 400 063 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory p:,w isions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Organic Coatings Limited, CIN : L24220MH1965PLC013187 (hereinafter called the 
"Company")_ Secretarial Audit was conducted In a manner that provided us a H:8S0nable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our veri fication of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms ',nd returns filed and other records 
maintained by the com pany and also the information provided by the Company. its officers , agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our l)pinion, the company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial yea r ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Boa rd·processes and compliance·tnechanism in place to the extent , in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31 st March, 2024 according to the provisior,·; of: 

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the ru les made thereunder; 

tii) The Securities Contracts (Regulatlon )Acl, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made tlo~reunder; 

(II I) The DepesitoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereund or; 

(IV) Foreign Exchange Managernent Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations mad~ thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

I v) The follOWing Regula tions and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities an·j Exchange Board of India Act , 1992 
(,SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company: 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of ~hares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011 ; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of InsiderTradin.) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Dis olosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018: 

(d) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emp'oyee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 ; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 'Securities) Regulations , 2008; (Not 
applicable to the company during the Audit Period ): 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and ~,hare Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with cl ient; (Not applicc:ble to the company during the Audit 
Period); 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Dellsting of Equity Shares) I, egulations, 2021; (Not applicable to 
the company dUring the Audit Period) 

(h) The Securllies and Exchange Board 01 India (Buyback of Securities) Regc, lations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 
company during the Audit Period) 

(I) The Securities and Excnange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations , 
2015 

23 
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We have also examined complia nce with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Insti tute of Company Secretaries of I rldia. 

(ii) The listing Agreement entered inlo by the Company with BSE limited " 'ad with SEBI (LODR) Regulat ions. 
2015 

To the best of our understanding , we are of the view that during the period under rev·,.,w. the Company has complied with 
the provisions of the Acts. Rules Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above . 

We further report that 

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examinC:ltion of the relevant documents and 
records In pursuance thereof, on test·check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable 
specifica lly to the Company: 

Industries (Development and Regulallon )Act 1951 

2 The FactoriesAct , 1948 

3 Water (Prevention and Control ofPoliutlon)Act, 1974 

4 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution ) Cess Act, 1977 

5 Indian BOilers Act, 1923; 

6 Information Technology Act. 2000; and 

7 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention , Prohibition and l~edressal) Act, 2013. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper b";ance of Executive Directors. Non­
Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes in the compc.J,!!tion of Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carned out in compliance with the previsions of the Act 

Adequate notice IS given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, a; enda and detailed notes on agenda 
are sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking arid obtaining further information and 
clanficatlons on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful particpation at the meeting . 

We note from the minutes examined during the course of audit that, at the Bow d meetings held during the year: (i) 
DeciSions were taken through the malorlty of the Board and (ii) No dissenting ',iews were expressed by any Board 
member on any oflhe subject matters discussed, which were required to be re~rded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that: 

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applica ble laws, rules , regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the a~d it period , there was no other evenUaction hc:ving major bearing on affairs of the 
Company. 

This repon IS to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure anl1 forms integral part of th is report . 

For D. Kothari And Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Dhanraj Kothari 
Proprietor 
FCS No.: 4930 
CP No.: 4675 

Place Mumbal 
Date . 10 August, 2024 

UDIN.F004930F000946631 
Peer ReView Certificate no 1314/2021 
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Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibi lity of the management of ne company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit 

2 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to ob! lin reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was dar t! on test basis to ensure that correct 
facls are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes anrj practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3 We have not venfied the correctness and appropriateness of financial rec.)rds and Books of Accounts of the 
company. 

4 Where ever required. we have obtained the Management representation aboct the compliance of laws. rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

5 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, l ules. regulat;ons, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our exammationwas li mited to the verification 01 procedures on test basis. 

6 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability n : the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the com ,IO any. 

For D. Kothari And Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Dhanraj Kothari 
Proprietor 
FCS No. : 4930 
CP No.: 4675 

Place Mumbai 
Date : 10'" August, 2024 

ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
PartIculars of energy conservation. technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo requi red under 
CompanIes (Accounts) Rules 2014 

A. Conservation of energy 

The company's operations do not involve substantial consumption of energy in comparison to the cost of 
production Wherever possible energy conservation measures have been impiemented. 

B. Technology absorption 

The Company has neIther purchased any technology domestically nor im~ .• ' rted any technology. Hen~e , the 
question offurnlshlf1g the information regarding technology absorption does net arise . 

tl) The reveroce ~xpenditure incurred on Research and Development is Rs . NIL . 

C, Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo 

The Company 11as earned Rs 18756 Lacs in Foreign Exohar.ge & used R5 . 143.57 Lacs of FO'Aign Exchange. 

25 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF 
THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERI.~L PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

1. Raila of lhe remuneration of each Di rec[or/KMP 10 [he median remuneration of' li the Employees of [he companyfor 
the financial year. . 

Median remuneration of alit he employees or[he Company forlhe Financial Year 202 :' -24 

The percentage increasel(Decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in th!? FinanCIal Year 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31" March. 202.(· 

1,81,800 

8.60% 

48 
----------------

Name of D irector Ratio of remuneration to medi ~ n % increase In remuneration 
remuneration of all employee!) in the Financial Year 

2023-24 

Non-Executive Directors (Sitting Fees) 

Ms Ashwim Lad 033 NA 

Mr DpakkumarK. Kanabar 0.33 NA 

Mr Ashlwnkumar H. Raval 0.33 NA 

Executive Directors (Remuneration) 

Mr Abhay R. Shah 14.03 NIL 

Mr Alay R Shah 8.55 NIL 

Key Managerial Personnel (Remuneration) 

Mr Sudhlr Shah 2.49 4.1 4 

Notes: 

The ratio of remuneration to median remuneration is based on remuneration pcl.d during the period 1 stAPfii , 2023 to 
31 March, 2024. 

2, Average percen[ile Increase already made," the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentage increase in the mana!~er i al remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional ci rcumstances for Increase in t.,e managerial remuneration: 

The company has given average Increment 8.18% to its employees. The comrany has not given any increment to 
I[S directors during [he year 2023-24. 

3. Remuneration IS as perthe remuneration policy of the Company 

It is hereby affirmed that [he remuneration paid is as per the policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Personnel 
Manager and other employees. 
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We have audited the financial statements of Organic Coatings Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Cash Flows Statement for tne year then ended and note. to the financial statements, including 

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information . 

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanatiors given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so required 

and give a true ana fa" view In conformity with the accounting principles genera!ly accepted in India, of the state of 

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and Its loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash 

nows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) spe :ified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further descli Jed in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the F,nanclat Statements section of our report . We are independen: of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of EthiCS Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) tc;gether with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder. and we have fulfilled C'Jr other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's 

Code of EthiCS We believe that the audit eVidence we have obtained is sufficient ar d appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of Ir'ost significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the ,,,ntext of our audit of the financial 

statements as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a !.t~parate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be cII'11municated in our report. 

1. Trade Receivables - The Company is in the supply of printing inks and auxiliar 'es to printers ali over India. In the 

printing press Industry the preference of payments for supplier of inks is the I~west. Some trade receivables are 

slow in recovery and take time for recovery beyond the limitation period. In ,")me cases suits have been filed for 

recovery and the court Judgments are yet to be received. There is therefol !' a risk for realisation of the trade 

receivables (refer note no. 37). 

How our audit address the key audit matter-

Our audit procedure included among others examining the pattern of subseq'Jent receipts, the status of various 

legal cases and management's method to determine the recoverability of tl :e amount considering the feedback 

from the market. We validated the appropriateness of the related disclosL,es in not~ no. 38 of the financial 

statements. 

Other Information 

The Company's Management and Board of Dlrectors are responsIble for the other informatIon. The other Information 

comprises the Information Included In the Company's annual report , but does not irclude the financial statements and 27 
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our auditors' report thereon. The Company's annual report is expected to be madE available to us after the date of this 

auditor's report 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information a ', ei we will not express any form of 

asstJrance conclusion thereon 

In connection with our audIt of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read t"le other information identified above 

when it becomes available and, in dOing so , consider whether the other informatio1 is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements orour knowledge obtained in the audit orothervvise appears to t f": materially misstated . 

When we read the Company's annual report , It we conclude tha t there is a material m;sstatement therein, we are requ ired 

to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take neceSS8ty actions, as applicable under the 

relevant laws and regulations . 

Management's Responsibility for the Financiat Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 13~ ( 5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") with respect to the preparation of these f inancial statements that give a true Bild fair view of the financial position, 

finanCial performance, (changes in equity) and cash nows of the Company in accorcance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards speCified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 

also includes maintenance of adequate accountmg records in accordance with the povisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irre911larities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are re",;onable and prudent; and design, 

,mplementation and maintenance of adequate interna l financial controls, that were JfJerating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparatic:" and presentation of the financial 

statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, wh~~her due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing tt',t Company's ability to ~ontinue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern anc . using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to c" ase operations, or has no realistic 

alternat,ve but to do so . 

Those Boa rd of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial I eporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiat Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial st~tements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditolJ~ report that includes our opinion . 

Reasonable assurance IS a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements C~;l arise from fraud or error and are 

considered matenal If . IndIVidually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be f,'xpected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on li1e basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment ahd maintain professional skepticism 

th roughout the audit. We also : 

Identify and assess the risks of material mlsstatemenl of the fimmclal statem :.:nts, whether due to fraud or error, 

deSign and perform audit procedures responSive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a baSIS for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materi;]1 misstatement resulting from fraud 

IS higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may Involve Coliusl0n, forgery, intentional omissions. 

misrepresentations. or the override of Internal control 

Obtain an understanding of Internal financial control re:evant to the audit in orda' to design audit procedures that are 

approproate ,n the corcumstances. Under sect,on 143(3)(1 ) of the Act, we are l isa responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has adequale internal financial controls !.ystem in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such comrols 
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabkmess of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern c(:Sis of accounting and , based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we ~onclude that a material uncerta inty 
exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conciusior s are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report . However, future events or cO'1ditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stater,lents, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and e \'ents in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding , among other mat\f~rs , the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inter'lat control that we identify during our 

audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we hnve complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all retationships and other ma«ers that may 
reasonabty be thought to bear on our independence, and where appticabte, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those chargee with governance , we deterrrine those matters that were of mosl 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma«ers. We 

describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the ma«er or 

when. in extremely rare circumstances. we determine that a matter should not be cvmmunicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication . 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (AudItor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued b:t the Centrat Government of India in 
lerms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in th" "Annexure A", a statement on the 
matters speCIfied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable . 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on ourauditwe report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessaryforlhe purposes of our audit . 

(bl In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

ou' examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheel, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 

Changes In EqUIty, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are '" agreement with the relevant books 
of account. 

(d) In our opinion , lhe aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified u·1der Section 133 of the Act. 

(e l On the basis of the wntten representations received from the directors as on :: ; '3t March , 2024 taken on record by 

the Board of Directors , none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st Man;" 2024 from being appOinted as a 

dlrectOrln terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the inte rnal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to ourseparate Report in "Anne) ure 8" . 

(9) With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor's Report in accorjance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 , In our opinion and to the best of our Informaoon and according to the explanations 

given to us. 29 
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact i ,:i financial position. 

11 The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses 

Iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the InvGstor Education and Protection Fund 

by the Company 

IV. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowled£le and belief, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share prE rr'lium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any Olher person(s) or entity(ies), includi.1g fo reign entities ("Intermediaries"), 

with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thC:Il the Intermediary shall , directly or 

indirectly lend or Invest In other oersons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company ("Ullimate Benefic,anes") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries 

b) The Management has represented , that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including for,"gn entities ("Funding Parties"). with 

the understanding , whether recorded in wri ting or otherwise, that the Company shall . directly or indirectly. lend 

or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoeve .. oyor on behalf of the Funding Party 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries" ) or provide any guarantee , security orthe like or ;)ehalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

c) Based on the aud,t procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances , notl--,ing has come to our notice that has caused us to b~! I;eve that the representations under 

sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The has not declared/paid any dividend during the year 

vi . Based on our examination which Included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31 st March , 2024 wt'ich has a feature of recording audit 

trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in 

the soft\ .... are Further, during the COurse of our audit, we did not come ,)i:ross any instance of the audit trail 

feature being tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is app'i:able from 1 st April, 2023 , reporting 

under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 or. preservation of audit trail as per the 

sta tutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financ.a' year ended 31 st March, 2024 . 

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 1'J7(16) oftheAc!: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , th~ remuneration paid by the Company 

to its directors during the cu rrent year is in accordance with the provisicr'ls of Section 197 of the Act. The 

remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under ~.nction 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 

Corporate Affaors has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) ',f the Act which are required to be 

commented upon by us 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAt Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 24038870BKAKWX9819 

Mumbai 

30 May 23 , 2024 
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Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requ i,'ements' section of our report the 

members of Organic Coatings Limited of even dale 

II) (a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing lull particula .';, including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment: 

B) The Company has maintained proper records shOWing full particulars (.! intangible assets: 

(b) As explained to us, Ihe Property, Plant and Equipment have been phYSically verified by Ihe management at 

reasonable Intervals dUring the year, which in our opinion is reasonal1.e having regard to the size of the 

Company and nature of Its assets. No material discrepancies were notice::! on such verification; 

(e) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Comp8ny, the title deeds 01 all the immovable properties (other than croperties where the company is the 

lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of th'~ lessee ) disclosed in the financial 
statements are held II) the name of the company; 

(d) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basi£~ of our examination of the records of 
:he Company, the company has not revalued Its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 

or Intanglole assets or both during the year; 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against t~e company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act , 1988 (45 of 191\3) and rules made thereunder; 

I II) (a) As explained to us, phySical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 

management and , in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of suell verification by the management is 
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each cl;ss of inventory were noticed; 

(b) According to the information and explanalions given 10 us and on the basis of our examination olthe records 01 

the Company, during any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 

In excess of five crare rupees, in aggregate. from bankS on the basis of s~r.urity of current assets. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(i l) of the order is not applicable: 

\111) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured , to companies, firms , limited liability partnerships or 

any other parties, Accordingly, paragraph 3(i ii) olthe orderis not applicab G; 

( IV ) According to the Information and explanations gillen to us and on the bas's of our examination of the records , 
the Company has not given any loans , or provided any guarantee orsecur;ly as specified under Section 185 of 
the Companies Act. 2013 and the Company has not provided any gua~antee or security as specified under 
Section 186 afthe Companies Act, 2013, 

IV) The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence the directives h.sued by Ihe Reselve Bank 01 India 

and the proVisions olthe sections 73 to 76 or any other relevan t provision" ol the Act and the rules framed there 

under are not required to be complied with by the Company. According:?, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not 

applicable 

! VI} The Maintenance of cost records has not oeen specified by the Central GnJemment under sub-section 1 of the 
section 1';8 of the Act for any of the services by the Company. AccordinGI v, paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not 

applicable 

31 
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(Vii) (a) According to the information and explanalions given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, amounts deductedl accrued in the books of account in raspect of undisputed statutory dues 

Including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees state insunnce. income tax, sales tax, service 

tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax , cess and any othel '.tatutory dues have generally been 

regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the approproate authorities and no undisputed 

amounts payable were In arrears as at 31 March 2024 fora period of mor e than six months from the date they 

became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no dllcs outstanding of goods and service 

tax providen! fund employees state Insurance, income tax, sales tax, ;prvice tax, duty of customs, duty of 

eXCise , value added tax , cess and any other statutory dues on accQl·ni of dispute which have not been 

deposited with the concerned authorotles: 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ,)ur examination of the records of the 

Company, there are no transactions that are not recorded In the books of accounts in respect of surrendered or 

disclosed as income dUring the year in the tax assessments underthe Income ToxAct, 1961 (43 of 196 t): 

(IX) (9) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest therecn to a bank and financial institution; 

(b) The company is not a declared wilfu l defaulter by any bank or financial insiitution orotherle nder: 

(c) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtc.i fled; 

(d ) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term pi "poses; 

te ) The comoany has not taken any funds from any entity or person on acco" "t of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries , associates or jOint ventures, 

(fl The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of set urities held in its subSidiaries , joint 

ventures or associate companies; 

(x) (a) According to the Information and explanations given to us, and based on c.ur examination of the records of the 

Company. the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public oller or further public offer (including 

debt Instruments) during the year: Accordingly, paragraph 3{x){a) of the oltteris not applicable. 

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us , and based on ( ·ur examination olthe records olthe 

Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or priva", placement of shares or convertible 

debentures (fully, pa rllallyoroptionally convertible) during the year. Accor<1ingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) olthe order 

IS not applicable 

(xl) (a ) lin our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given II) us, no fraud by the Company or on 

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or rep,·rted during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not apolicable 

(b) According to the information and explanat ons given to us, no report undsr sub-section (12) of Section 143 of 

the Companies Act , 2013 has been filed by the auditors In Form AD-'- " as prescribed under Rule 13 of 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Governmert 

(CI No complaints have been received from a whistle blower during the yeur by the company. 

(Xli) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , tt-,e company is not a Nidhi company. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order IS not applicable 
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(Xlii) !n our opinion and according to Ine information and explanations given to us , d.,d based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in complience with sections 177 and 188 of the 

Act, where applicable and the details of the same have been disclosed in the fin 'ncial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards; 

(XIV) (8) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size all J nature Of its business; 

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors forthe period under audit were consid,, :ed by us ; 

(xv) According to the information and explanattons given to us, and based on all:" examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 

them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order IS not applicable . 

(XVOl (a) The Company ,s not required to be registered under section 45-1A of t~e Reserve Bank of India , 1934 (2 of 
1934) Accord,ngly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the order is not applicable. 

d:;) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housi"d Finance activities without a valid 

Cert,ficate of Registrat'on (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as perth" Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

(c) The company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in tre regulatioos made by the Reserve 
Bank of India ; 

(XVIi) The company has nct incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immedi3tely preceding financial year. 

I xv,iljThere has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year; 

(xox) On the baSIS of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of real isation of financial assets and payment of 

finanCial liabilitles, other information accompanying the financial statemer t<;, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncert~inty exists as on the date of the audit 
report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date c (balance sheet as and when they fall 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; 

(xx) In our opinton and accordmg to the information and explanations given to us, Ir E::re is no unspent amount under sub­
sect,on (5) of Section 135 of the Compan,es Act. 2013 pursuant to any projeot. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 
3(xxj(b) o<the Order are not appl icable. 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

tCAI Firm Registration No . 11~352W 

UdaySoman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDtN : 24038870BKAKWX9819 

Mumbai 

May23, 2024 
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(Referred to in paragraph (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqllirements' section of our report of 

even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Contro ls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 

t43 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act") 

We have audited the Internal financial con trols over financial reporting of Organic Cos: ings Limited ("the company") as at 

3151 March 2024 In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financ ial statements of the company for the year ended on 

that date 

Management's Responsibililyfor Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of 

Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal financial controls OV3r financial Reporting issued by the 

Instolute of Cllartered Accounlants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities includ" the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively fi~r ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's poliCies, the safeguard",g of its assets, the prevention and 

detectton of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting rci'::ords, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial in fo rmation, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility IS to express an opinion on the company's internal financial contruls over financial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on AUdit ·of Internal Financial Controls Over 

FinanCIal Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 

143(1 0) of the CompamesAct, 2013, to the extent app',cable to an audit of internal f nancial controls, Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and perform the uudi! to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal finanCial controls over fine:' II:::ial reporting was established and 

maIntaIned and If such controls operated effectively If'" all material respects. 

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeqlJ::Icy of the interr.al financial controls 

system over financia i reporting and thei r operating effectiveness. Our audit of intfjrnal financia l con trols over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financia l controls over financial reporting , assessing the risk that 

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eff:;,ctiveness of Inlemal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the aUditor's judgment, i n c~ud i ng the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or errQr. 

We beheve that ttle audit eVidence we have obtained IS sufficient and appropriate to )rovide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the Company's mternal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Re port ing 

A Company's internal finanCial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the rel iability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial st.~ tements for external purp03es in 

accordance With genera lly accepted accounting principles . Acompany's interna l fin .1::1cial control over financial repor": ing 

Includes those policies and procedures thet (1) pertain 10 the maintenance of '",cords that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fa irly reneel [he transactions ana d'sposllions of the assets of th e company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance thaI Iransacl.!ons are recorded as necessnry 10 pemlit preparation of finc.:l cial stataments in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting pnnclples, and that leceipts and expenditures of [Ii, company are being made only in 

accordance with authorities of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance 

regarding prevention or t Imely detection of unauthorized acqUisition . use or dispositit)11 of the company'~ asset~ that could 

34 have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financia l controls over financia l rP.,lorting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls. materials misstatements dl:f: to error or fraud may occur and not 

be detected. Also, projections of any eva luation of the Internal financial controls OVf,r' financial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal fi nancial control over financial reporting rn~.y become inadequate because of 

changes In conditions, orthat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedure 'may deteriorate . 

Opinion 

In our opinion , to the best of Durinformation and according to the explanations given tc. us, the company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial reporting anc. juch internal financial controls over 

financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31 , 2024 , based on the in ~J rnal financial control over financial 

reporting crltena established by the company consldenng the essential componE ~ llts of internal control stated in the 

GUidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia l Controls Over Financial Reporting "sued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN : 24038870BKAKWX9819 

Mumbai 

May23,2024 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2024 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property. plan t and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Flnancal assets 
4 Other financial assets 
O ther non current assets 
Total non-current assets 
Current assets 
Inventones 
FInancial assets 
- Trade receivables 
- Cash and cash equivalents 
- Other financial assets 
Other cu rren t assets 
Total current assets 
TotatAssets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equ ity 
Equoty Share capital 
OtherequllY 
Total equity 
Liabil ities 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabili ties 
- Borrowings 
Other Fi nancia ls liabilities 
Provisions 
Total non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
- Borrowings 
. Trade payables 
. la) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterpnses 
- Ib) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 
Other current liabiliti es 
Provisions 
Total current liabilities 
Tota l liab ililies 
Total equity and liabilities 
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe 
Financial Statements 

As per our Repan of even date 
For Soman Uday & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Regis tration No. 110352W 

Uday Soman 
Propnetor 
Membership No: 38870 

Mumbal 
May 23. 2024 

Note 
No. 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 
10 
11 

12 
13 

14 
15 
16 

17 
18 

19 
20 

1-45 

Asat 
31 " ~Iarch , 2024 

871 .15 
0.41 

44.22 

915.78 

312.66 

637.98 
0.68 
4.56 

39.88 
995.76 

1,911 .54 

767.46 
(648.22) 

119.24 

567.61 
15.13 
12.87 

595.61 

517.46 

27.75 

587.27 
49.83 
14.38 

1,1 96.69 
1,792.30 
1,911 .54 

(' in Lakhs 
Asat 

31 "March.2023 

950.11 
0.41 

44.31 
0.14 

994.97 

302 .79 

619 .04 
1.29 
4.95 

49.29 
977.36 

1.972.33 

767.46 
(599.00) 

168.46 

672.82 
21 .13 

8.79 
702.74 

525 .68 

8.92 

500.78 
56.27 

9.48 
1,101.13 
1 ,803.87 
1 ,972.33 

For and on behalf 01 the Board Of Directors 
CIN No. l24220MH 1965PlC013187 

AbhayR Shah 
Managing Director 
DIN: 00016497 

Sudhir R Shah 

AjayRShah 
Whole Time Director and CFO 
DIN: 00011763 

Company Secreta~ .. & Compl iance Officer 

Mumbal 
May23 , 2024 
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20 23- 24 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3-151 March, 2024 

, in Lakhs 

Particulars Note 
No. 

Forlhe 'lear ended For lhe year ended 
31" ~Iarch , 2024 31 " March. 2023 

INCOME 
Revenue from operat!ons 
Other Income 
Total income 

EXPENSES 

21 
22 

Cost of materials consumed 23 

Changes In inventones offinlshad goods and work-m-progress 24 
Employee benefils expense 25 
Finance costs 26 

DeprecIation and amortisation e)(pense 27 

Other expenses 28 
Total Expenses 
(loss) before lax 

Tax Expense: 

Less ' Current Tax 
(loss) for Ihe Year 
Olher Comprehensive Income I (loss) 
Addf( less): Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 
Other Comprehensive Income I (loss) for Ihe year 
Total comprehensive income/(Loss) forthe year 

Earnings per equity share efface value oft10 each 

BasIc (in ") 
Diluted (In t) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the 

financial statements. 

29 

1-45 

2,683.40 
6.51 

2,689.91 

1,767.61 
9.89 

87.96 
144.83 
93.04 

633.93 
2,737.26 

(47.35) 

(47.35) 

p .87) 
(1.87) 

(49.22) 

(0.62) 
(0 .62) 

As per our Report of even date 
For Soman Uday & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf 01 (he Board of Dlreclors 
CIN NO. l24220MH·! 965PlC013187 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

AjayA Shah 

2.289.51 
16.67 

2.306.1 8 

1.647.91 
(3.36) 
82 .27 

149.37 
98.27 

426.76 
2,401.22 

(95.04) 

(95.04) 

0.98 
0.98 

(94.06) 

(1.24) 

(1 24) 

UdaySoman 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 38870 

AbhayA Shah 
Managing Director 
DIN' 00016497 

Whole Time Director and CFO 
DIN: 00011763 

Mumbal 
May23.2024 

Sudhir A Shah 
Company Secretar, & Compliance Officer 

Mumbal 
May 23 . 2024 
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w 
co Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 st March, 2024 --_. ._-

~ in Lakhs 
Equily Share b) ()Iher Equily 

Capilal Reserves and Surplu s Other Comprehensive Income 

Parliculars Equily Share General Capilal Securilies Relained Revalualion Other Com-
Capilal Reserves Reserves Premium Earnings Surplus prehensive 

Icome 

a b c d e g 
Changes in Ihe equity for Ihe year 
ended 31 sl March,2023 

Balance as allstApri!. 2022 767.46 52.82 1.20 778.'15 (1,528.30) 186.90 3.99 
(Loss) for the year (95.04) 
Other comprehensive Income for the 0.98 
~Iear ~ncl of lax~ 
Tolaf comprensive income for Ihe year (95.04) 0 .98 
Other Ad~slmenls 
~alance as .~131 sl March,2023 767.46 52_82 1.20 778A5 (1,623.34) 186.90 4.97 
Changes in the equity for the year 

ended 31 sl March,2024 
Balance as at 1st April. 2023 767.46 52.82 1.20 778.45 (1 ,623.34) 186.90 4.97 
(Loss) forthe year (47.35) 
Other comprehensive income for the year 
(net of tax) (1.87) 
Total comprensive income for the year (47.35) (1.87) 
Other Adiustments 
Balance as al 31 sl March , 2024 767.46 52.82 1.20 778.45 (1 ,670.69) 186.90 3.10 
The accompanying noles are an integral part ofthe financial slatements 

As per our Report of even date 
For Soman Uday -S: Co. 
Chartered Accounlants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman 
Proprietor 
Membership No:38B70 

Mumbai 
May 23,2024 

For and on behalf of the B')ard of Directors 
CiN No. !.2Q;:20;';/119b,:i>L(;Ul. i8 , 

AbhayR Shah 
Managing Director 
DIN : 00016497 

Sudhir R Shah 

Ajay R Shah 
Whole Time Director and CFO 
DIN: 00011763 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumbal 
May23,2024 

Tolalol Tolal 
Other Equily Equily 

h i= (a+h) 

(504.94) 262.52 
(95.04) (95.04) 

0.98 0.98 

(94.06) (94.06) 

(599.00) 168.46 

(599.00) 168.46 
(47 35) (47 .35) 

(1.87) (1.87) 
(49.22) (49.22) 

(648.22) 119.24 

0 
~ 

to 

'" ::::I 
0 
('") 
0 

'" =-::::I 
to 

'" r 
:3 
;:;: 
/I) 
c-
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 " March, 2024 

~----------=~7in~La~k~h-s 

Particulars Forth. '/earended 
31" March, 2024 

For the year ended 
31 " March, 2023 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Net (Loss) before extraordinary Items and tax 
Adlustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Actuarial Gain/Loss 
(Profi t) {loss on sale Iwnte off of assets 
Finance costs 
Interest income 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
Changes In working capital: 
Adjustments for (increase) I decrease In operating assets: 
Inventones 
T fade receivables 
Other current financial assets 
Other current assets 
Other non cu rrent finan cial assets 
Other non cu rrent assets 

Adjustments fortncrease / (decrease) in operating Itabil iltes: 
Trade payables 
Other current financial liabilities 
Other current liabilities 
Current proVISions 
Other non current financialliabililies 
Non current provisions 
Cash Generation from Operation 
Net cash ftowfrom / (used in) operating activities (A) 
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Interesllncome 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing aclivities (B) 
C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Net Increase '(decrease) In current financial liabilities for borrowings 
Net inc'ease I (decrease) in non current financial liabil ities for borrowings 
Finance cost 
Net cash flow from I (used in) financing activities © 
Net increase I (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents atthe Beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year· 

, Comprises 
(a) Cash on hand 
(b) Balances With banks 

(i) In current accounts 
(Ii) In EEFC accounts 
(iii) In deposit accounts With Banks 

The accorTIpanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

(47.35) 

93.04 
(1 .87) 

0.03 
144.83 
(1 . 7~) 

186.90 

(9.87) 
(18.97) 

0.38 
9.41 
0.11 
0.14 

105.33 

(6.43) 
4.90 

(6.00) 
4.07 

269.97 
269.97 

(14.11) 

1.78 
(12.33) 

(8.21 ) 
(105.21 ) 
(144.83) 

==~258.25) 
(0.61) 

1.29 
0.68 
0.61 

0.06 

0.23 

0.39 
0.68 

As per our Repon of even date For and on behalf oftl'e Board of Directors 
ForSoman Uday& Co. CIN No. L24220MH1!l~5PLC013187 
Chartered Accountant~ 
ICAI Firm ReglstraUon No 110352W 

AJayRShah 

(95.04) 

98.27 
0.98 
0.63 

149.37 
(2 ·;m 

151 .84 

35.55 
76.67 

1.40 
38.95 
(0 .80) 

0.62 

(164.32) 

10.15 
6.28 
3.00 

(423) 
155.11 
155.11 

(3 .96) 

2.37 
(1 .59) 

(14.16) 
(7.99) 

(149.37) 
(171 .52) 

(1 e.OO) 
19.29 

1.29 
18.00 

0.03 

0.89 

0.37 
1.29 

UdaySoman 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 38870 

AbhayR Shah 
Managing Director 
DIN: 00016497 

Whole Time Director and CFO 
DIN: 00011763 

Mumbal 
May23 2024 

Sudhir R Shah 
Company Secretary !. Compliance Officer 

Mumbal 
May 23 , 2024 39 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " M arch, 2024 
---------------------

1. Corporate information 

"The Company was incorporated on 22nd April, 1965 as a Private Limited I:ompany limited by shares. It was 
converted in Public limited company in the year 1995. 11 has its Registered offi ce in Mumbai and manufacturing 
facility at village Umaraya, Taluka-Padra , Dist-Vadodara ,Gujarat, India. Thr, '::ompany is listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (SSE ). The company is engaged in the business of manufac.uring and trading in Printing Inks & 
Allied products. The company sells its products across India and to othercountries." 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were appro,ed by the Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on May 23, 2024 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis: 

2_1 Basis of accounting and preparation offinancial statements 

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Ind AS af prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ru'es, 2015, as amended from time to 
time 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, e)t;ept following assets and liabili ties 
which have been measured at fair value . 

i I) Land and building forming part of Property, plant and equipment 

ioo) Deflned Benefit pians-pla" assets 

Up to the year ended March 31 2017, the Company has prepared its financia' statements in accordance with the 
requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) whi ',h includes standards ootified under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as" Previ 'oJS GAAP", 

The functional and presentation currency of the Company IS Indian Rupee (T) which is the curreocy of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. 

2,2 Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements are in conformity with Ind AS :equires the Management to make 
eSlimates, judgement and assumptions These estimates, judgement and "ssumption affect the application of 
accounting poliCies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the c.'i3closures of contingent assets and 
l1abllitles at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of rever 1.I3S and expenses during the period . 
Accounting estimates could change from period to penod, Actual results could differ from those estimates, 
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances 
surrou nding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financ~il l st~tements in the period in which 
changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the ·'i ,.,ancial statements. 

2.3 Revenue recognition 

Sales of goods are recognlsed, net of relums and trade discounts, on transfc~ of significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer, which generally cOlnc'des with the delivery of goods '" customers, Sale of goods is net of 
Indirect taxes,returns and discounts. 

Interest income from a financial asset it recognised using effective interec;l: rate method . Dividend income is 
accounted forwhen the right to receiVE the payment is established . 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted I expected .0 be admitted and to the extant that 
there IS no uncertalilty In receiving the claims 

Otl1er Income IS accounted for on accrua baSIS except where the receipt of ircome Is uncertain In which case it is 
accounted foron receipt basis . 

2,4 Inventories 

Inventones of Raw Materials, Consumable Stores , Packing Materials, Work ,n Progress and Finished Goods are 
valued at lower of Cost and net realisablf> \/alue Cost Comprises all cost of 1"':Jrchase and other cost incurred In 
bringing irwentones to theIr present location and condition. Work in Progress and Finished Goods include 
appropriate amount proportions of the overhead Imported raw materials, st~ck in transit are valued at cost and 
customs duty thereon 
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2023-24 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " ~V.arch , 2024 

--~--.----------

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverall e taxes , trade discount ano rebates 
Including any cost, directly attributable to bringing the assets to their workin~ condition for its intended use , net 
charges on foreign exchange arising from exchange rate variations attribut8ble to the assets less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any except for certain property, plant and equipment, which have been 
revalued 

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimat€,r, useful lives using the straight-line 
method. 

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follOWS: 

BUlldlngs- 30 Years 
Plant and Machinery - 15 Years 

Electnc Insta llation and Lab Instrument- 10 Years 
Office Equlpment­
Computer EqUipment­

Furniture and Fixures­
Veh,cles-

SYears 
3 Years 

10 Years 
8 Years 

Subsequent costs are Included In the asset 's carrying amount or recognised :.:i a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it IS probable that future economiC benefi ts associated with the item \ Jill flow to the entity and the cost can 
De measured reliably. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant dnd equipment are reviewed at each 
financial yearend and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when the asset IS derecognised. 

Capital Work In Progress if any, are carried at cost, comprising direct co 5t. related incidental expenses and 
artributable Interest. 

2.6 Depreciation /Amortisatlon and useful lives of property, plant and equipm. nt/Intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment I intangible assets are depreciated I amortised" ler their estimated useful lives , after 
taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimat£:d useful lives and residual values of 
the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation I amor1isation to be recorded during any 
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar 
assets and take Into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciali·)n I amortisation for fu ture periods is 
revised If there are significant changes from previous estimates. 

2.7 Intangible Assets 

Intangible Assets are stated at cOSI of acquisition net of recoverable tax~", trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated amortisation/depletion and Impairment loss, if any. Such cost i1cludes purchase price, borrowing 
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working Gondition for the intended use, net 
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchar'ne rate variations attributable to the 
tntangible assets. 

Subsequent costs are Inc:uded In tha asset 5 carrying amount or recognised 2S a separate asset. as appropriate, 
only when It IS probable that fu1ure economiC benefits associated with the item wi ll now to the entity and the cost can 
be measured re liably. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible a~sets are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively. If app'opnate 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the aSRet and are recognised n the Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset IS derecogntsed 

2.8 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 

rransactlons denominated In the foreign currencies are recorded at the excr.ange rate prevailing on the date of 
Irarsaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

The monetary assets and liabilities denominated In the foreign currencies arp t anslated at the functional currency 
clOSing rates of exchange al the reporting date 41 
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Organ ic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2024 
--------------------

Any Income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement on translation is recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss except In the case the long term liabilities, jf any. wnere they relate to the acquisItion of 
the fixed assets, In which case they are adjusted to the carrying amount of such Clssets. 

2.9 Employees Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 

Provident Fund & ESI C are defined con tribu tion schemes established under a State Plan . The contributions to the 
schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year when the contribu tions become due . 

Detlned Benefit Plans 

The company has a defined benefit gratully plan. Every employee who has cOl1lpleted five years or more of service 
gets a gratuity on post employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for eaC!l completed year of services as per 
the Payment of Gratuity Act , 1972. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the besis of an actuarial va luation made 
uSing Project Unit Credit Method at the end of the financial year. The scheme i5 funded with an insurance company 
In the form of a qualifying insurance poliCY. Actuanal gains/losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss in 
the year in which they arise 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans In respect of post-employment are ctoarged to the Other Comprehensive 
Income. 

Compensated Absences 

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both acu,mulating and non-accumulating in 
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determired by actuarial va luation performed 
by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit cre.jit method on the addi tional amount 
expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has aCCL'mulated at the Balance sheet date. 
Employees are entitled to accumulate leave su bject to certain limits for future E;r.,::ashment. The liability in respect of 
leave encashment is provided for on the baSIS of actuanal valuation made c t the end of the financial year using 
Prolect Unit Credit Method. The said liability is not funded. 

2.10 Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or p·oduction of qualifying assets are 
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that tnt.es substantial period of time to get 
ready for its Intended use 

All other borrOWing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they me incurred. 

2.11 Fairvalue Measurement: 

Company measures financial instruments , such as, derivatives at fairvalueat E..C1ch balance sheet date . 

Fair value IS the price thai would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regard less of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an ""set or a liabi lity, the Company takes 
into account the characteristics of asset and liabili ty if market participants woulc~ take those into consideration. Fair 
va lue for measurement and I or dIsclosure purposes in these financial stat .~ments is determined in such basis 
except for transactions in the scope of Ind AS 2, 17 and 36. Normally at initial re-cognition , the transaction price is the 
best evidence affaIr value. 

The fair value or an asset or liability IS measured using the assumptions that rr,arket part icipants wou ld use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their f.;conomic best interest. A Fair va lue 
measurement of a non-financial asset takes In to account a market partiCipants ability to generate economic 
benefits by uSing the asset In its highest and best use orby selling it to another n.arket participant that would use the 
asset tn its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstan:es and for which sufficient data are 
avai lable to meaSLJre fair value , maximiSing the use of relevant observabl ~ inputs and minimisi ng the use of 
unobservable Inputs. 

All financial assets and financial liab",t.es for which fair value is measured or 01sclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised Within the fair va lue hierarchy descrrbed as follows, based on tll , ~ lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted I Unadjusted) market prices and active market for ident,cal assets and liabilities 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques lor which the lowest level inputs tI '3t is significant to the fair value 
measurement IS directly or Indirectly observable. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2024 

--------------------
Level3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fa ir value 

measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements 0" a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by the re assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level tnput that is significant to the fair value ",easurer ·, ont as a whole) at tile end of each 
reporting period . 

2.12 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one e llily and a financial liabi lity or equity 
Instrument of another entity. The Company recognises a financial asset or finarcialliability in its balance sheet only 
when the entity becomes party to the contmctual provisions of the instrument . 

a. Financial assets: 

A financial asset inter-alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instnHoent of another entity and a financial 
liability or equity Instrument of another entity. The Company recognises a tinancial asset or financial liability in 
Its balance sheet only when the entrtybecomes party to the contractual pruvisions of the instrument . 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fa ir value plus, in the case offinar F .... ial assets not recorded at fair value 
Ihrough profil or loss, Iransactlon costs thai are attribulable 10 the acquisilior· of the financial asset. Transaction 
costs of financIal assets carried al fair value through profit or lOSS are expensed in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
When transaction price is not the measure of fai r value and fair value is deterr:1ined using a valuation method that 
uses data from observable market, the difference between transaction pl i:;e and fair value is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss and in other cases spread over life of the financlfl l instrument using effect ive interest 
method. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement iinancial assets are classified in thrlle categories: 

Financial asset measured at amortised cos t 

Financial asset at fair value through OCI 

Financral assets at fa rr value througl1 profit or loss 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Financial assets are mer3sured at amort ised cost if tile financial asset is he:d within a business model whose 
objective is to hold financIal assets In order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. These financial assets are ammtised using the effective interest rate (ErR) method, less impa irment. 
Amortised cost is calcula ted by taking into account any discount or premium on ;::cquisition and fees orcosts that are 
an Integral part of the EIR. The ErR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in finance costs. 

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive inco!",1e if the fina ncial asset is held within 
a business model whose objective is achieved by both co llecting contractual c3sh flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to c.~.;h flows that are solely payments of 
principal and Interest on the pnnclpal2mount outstanding. At initial recognit iorl , an irrevocable election is made (on 
an Instrument-bY-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instccments other than held for trading 
purpose at FVTOCI. Fair value changes are recognised in the oth er compreh ensive income (OCI) . However, the 
Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and fore ign exchange gain or loss in the 
Income statement On derecognition of the financial asset other than equity ilistruments, cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised In OClls reclassified to Income statements 

Financial assets at fair val ue through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Any financial asset that does not meet the Criteria for classification as at amortis8d cost or as financial asse-ts at fair 
value through other comprehensive income. is classified as financial assets at fai r value thmugh profit or loss. 
Further. financia l assets at fair value through profit or loss also include financic I assets held for trading and financial 
assets deslgnc=tted up0'1 lntllal reccgnition at fair value ~h rough profit or loss. Financial assats are classified as held 
for trading If they are acquire:1 for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term . Financial assets at fair 
value ugh profit or loss are faIr valued at each reportr~g date with all the cha lyes recognised in the Statement of 
profit and loss 

"43 
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De-recognition offinancial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rigl1.s to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and mwards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the cisks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company r.=cognises its retained interest in the 
asset and an associated liability for amounts It may have to pay. If the Company 'etains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continue. ;0 recognise the financial asset and 
also recognises a collateralIZed borrOWing for the proceeds receivables. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (Eel ) modr~ 1 on the following: 

a) Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost. 

b) Financial assets measured ar falrvalue through other comprehensive ino)me (FVTOCI) 

ECl is measured through a loss allowance on a fo llowing basis:-

a) The twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that re ;ult fram all possible default events 

on the financial instruments that are possible within twelve months after th," report ing date) 

b) Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that resultfrafT, all possible default events overthe 
life of financial instruments) 

The company follows simphfied approach' for recognition of impairment on .rade receivables or contract assets 
resulting from normal bUSiness transactions The appl ication of simplified app·oach does not require the Company 
to Irack changes In credit risk However, it recognises impairment loss allowc:nce based on lifetime EeLs at each 
repOning date, from the date of inttlal recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets , the Company d,'! termines whether there has been a 
significant increase In the credit risk since Initial recognition . If credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECl is 
provided. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the C:ompany assesses the credit risk 
characteristics on instrument·by·instrument basis. 

ECl IS the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash nows that the enllty expects to rece ive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
EIR 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense/income in the 
statement of profit and loss 

b. Financial liabilities and equity Instruments: 

Classification as debt or equity 

Financial liabil ities and equity instruments Issued by the Company are classiii ~:.:I according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered Into and the definitions of a financial liability "nd an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument IS any contract that eVidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting 
all of itS liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, netaf direct issue costs. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings inciuding book overdraft, trade payable , accrued 
expenses and other payables. 

Initial Recognition and measurement 

All fmanclal liabtlitles at mitlal recognition are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost or financial liabilities 
ar fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate. AU financial liabilities are recoJnised initially at fairvalue and, in the 
case of loans and borrOWings and payables. net of directly attributable tranS<I.;rion costs. Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the faIr value at initial recognilton is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and l oss or In the "Expenditure Attributable to Construction" if another standarJ permit inciusion of such cost in the 
carrying amount of an asset over the period of the borrowings using the effectjv"~ rate of interest. 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent meaSIJrement offinanciaillabilitles depends upon the classificati c. n as descrtbed below:-
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Financial Liabilities classified at Amortised Cost: 

FinanCial Liabilities tha t are not held fortradmg and are not designated as at FV--PL are measured at amortised cost 
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Amortised cost is calculated b~i taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are integral part of the Effective Interest Rate . Interest expense that is 
not capi ta lised as part of cost of assets IS Included as Finance costs in the State-,ent of Profit and Loss . 

Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL includes financial liabilities held for trad ing and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as 
FVTPL. Financial liabi li ties are classified as held for trading if they are incurred )'orthe purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term . Financialltabtlities have not been designated upon initial recognitior -jt FVTPL. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability IS darecognlsed when the obl igation under the liability is di£dlarged/cancelied/expired. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substcll1 tially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified , such an exchange or modificati1n is treated as the de recogni tion of 
the original liabi lity and the recognition of a new liability_ The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

Offsetting offinaneial instruments 

Financial assets and liabil ities are offset and net amount is reported if there i ~ currently enforceable !egal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is Intention to seUle on a net baSiS, to r~al ise assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

2.13 Earnings per share 

BasIc Earn ings per share is computed by dividing the profit from continuir.\1 operotions and total profits, both 
attributable to equity share holders of the Company by the weighted average l limber of equity shares outstanding 
dUring the period . Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weigrred average number of equity and 
dilutive equivalenl shares outstanding during the period, except where the '8sol':s would be anti-dilutive. 

2.14 Income Tax Expenses 

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and de1t rred tax . Tax is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to the items recognised directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income. 

Current tax 

Current tax includes provision for Income Tax computed under special provtE-ion (Le. Minimum Alternate Tax) or 
normal provision of Income Tax Act provisions. Current income tax assets and Ii ; ~bilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities on the basis t") ~ estimated taxable Income. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or slhstantively enacted, at the reporting 
date 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax IS recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of Hssets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and their correspondi ng tax bases (known as temporary differ=nces). Deferred tax liabilities are 
recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduc& taxable profit in the future, and any 
unused tax losses or unused lax credits. Deferred tax assets are measured at tl'e highest amount that , on the basis 
of current or estimated future taxable profit , is more likely than not to be ree ()\lered . The net carrying amount of 
deferred tax assetg is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to refl~ct the current assessment of future 
taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised In profit or loss. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxBble profit (tax loss) of the periods in 
which It expects the deferred tax asset to be realised orthe deferred tax liability t·J be settled, on the basis of tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end af the reporting pel iod. 

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to the income taxes leVIed b I the same taxation authority and the 
Company intends to senle its current tax assets al"'d liabilities on a net basis. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all tiffllng differences. Deferred lax assets in respect of unabsorbed 
deprecia tion and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is vl rtua: certainty that there will be sufficient 
future taxable Income available to realise suct"l assets Deferred tax assets are recognised for timIng differences of 45 , ... 
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olher Items only to the extent that reasonaole certainty exists that sufficient fUlure taxable income will be available 
against which Ihese can oe rea lised Deferred tax assets are reviewed 81 each Balance Sheet date for their 
real lsabdtty 

2.15 Research and Development 

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research IS charged to the Statement of P",)fit and Loss. Development costs of 
products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a product's technological feasibility has been 
established, in which case such expendi ture is capi talised. The amount capitati::;ed comprises expenditure that can 
be directly attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to crea.'!1g, producing and making the asset 
ready for its inlended use Fixed assets utilised for research and developmell' are capitalised and depreciated in 
accordance with the policies stated for Tangible Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets. 

2.16 Impairment of Assets non-financial assets - property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

The carrying values of assets I cash generating units at each Balance Sheet dat·, are reviewed for impairment. If any 
indication of Impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is esti tn3ted and impairment is recognised, 
If the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of 
the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by disco Jnting the future cash flows to their 
present value based on an appropriate discount factor. 

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in .garlier accounting periods no longer 
eXists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss IS recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except In case of revalued assets 

2.17 Provisions and Contingent Liability 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal )r constructive) as a result of a past 
event . it is probable Ihat an outftow of resources embodying economic b~"efits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate ca n be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect af the time value of money is material, prOVisions are discounted usir;g a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
when appropriate. the risks specific 10 the liability. When discounting is used. n", increase in the provision due to the 
passage aftime is recognised as a finance cost. . 

Contingent liabi litIes and commItments are not recognised but are disclosed :n the notes. Contingents assets are 
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financia l statements. 
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~ in Lakhs 
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
---

Particulars Land Buildings Plant& Office Furniture Vehicles Computers Total 
Owned Owned equipment equipment & Fixtures Owned Owned 

Owned Owned --_. 
Gross Block 

At cost orlalr value as at 01.04.2022 232.26 432.66 2,01:5.59 9.57 1.61 63.69 25.40 2,761.16 

Additions 2,53 0.38 1,05 3.96 

Disposals 2,33 0.41 2.74 

At cost or fair value as al 31 ,03.2023 232.26 432.86 2,0IS.79 9.95 1.81 63.69 26.04 2,782.40 
----

Adltions 13,11 037 0.62 14.11 

Disposals 0 ,23 0.23 

AI cost or fair value as al 31 .03.2024 232.26 432.66 2,02IS.68 10.32 1.81 63.69 26.67 2,796.29 

Depreciation Block 

As at 01.04.2022 129.22 1,538.91 8.07 1.35 35.57 23.25 1,736.39 

Depreciation for the year 14.30 75.08 0,32 0.17 7.43 0.72 98 .02 

Disposals 1.72 0.39 2.11 

Accumulaled deprecialion as at Ihe 31.03.2023 143.52 1,612.28 8.40 1.53 42 .99 23.58 1,832.29 

Depreciation for the year 14 ,30 70 .12 0.35 0.15 7.43 0.69 9304 

Accumulated depreciation on dlSpC5ais U.18 O,18 

Accumulated depreciation as al Ihe 31 .03.2024 157.83 1,682.19 8.75 1.67 50.43 24.27 1,925.14 

Net Block 
U1 
ID • 

As at 31.03.2023 232.26 289,34 403 ,51 1.55 0.29 20.69 2.46 950 .11 » 
Z 

As at 31.03.2024 232.26 275.03 3415.49 1.57 0.14 13.27 2.39 871 .15 Z 
c: 

Note: In orderlo comply with the requirements of It,D AS 101 , the Company has CoDnsidered fa ir market value from 1st April2016 of ils land admeasuring IV » 
of 8631 Sq Mt situaled at Vi llage Umraya. Taluka-Padra, District- Vadodara and Buildings slanding thereon . The incremental impact of increase in value of 0 

,... 
land by ~ 152 ,681akhs and Building by ~ 35.631akhs has been credi led to revaluation surplus in FY 2017-18. IV %J 

W m 
"0 

I 0 IV %J 
-I>- ~ 

-.... .... 
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4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Particulars 

Gross Block 

At cost orfair value as al 01.04.2022 

Additions 

Disposals 

AI cosl or fair value as at 31.03.2023 

Additions 

Disposals 

AI cosl or fair value as at31.03.2024 

Depreciation Block 

As at 01.04.2022 

Depreciation for the year 

Disposals 

Accumulated depreciation as a!the 31.03.2023 

Depreciation for the year 

Disposals 

Accumulated depreciation as at the 31 .03.2024 

Net Block 

As at 31.03.2023 

As at 31.03.2024 

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particula rs 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid Expenses 

Security Deposits 

Secured 

Bank deposits wilh more than 12 months maturity 

InlerestAccrued on Deposits 

TOTAL 

6. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered Doubtful 

Prepaid Long Term Employee Benefits (Gratuity) 

TOTAL 

Computer sofv,,;ate 

8.0·t 

S.!l4 

S.!!·I 

S.G2 

0.25 

8 .;3'7 

8.B·1 

om 
0.11 1 

Patents 

6.76 

6.76 

6.76 

6.42 

6.42 

6.42 

0.34 

0.34 

As at 
31 " March, 2024 

0.18 

32.69 

9.91 

1.44 

44.22 

As al 
31" March, 2024 

~ in Lakhs 

Total 

15.70 

15.70 

15.70 

15.03 

0.25 

15.29 

15.29 

0.41 

0.41 

~ in Lakhs 

Asal 
31" March . 2023 

0.74 

32.69 

9.91 

0.97 

44.31 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March. 2023 

0.14 

0.14 



59'" ANNUAL REPORT 

2023-24 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2024 

-~-------

7. INVENTORIES 

(At Lower 01 cost and net realisable value) ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars Asat 
_____________________________________________________ ~3~1_"March , 2024 

Asat 
31 " March.2023 

Raw matenals 

Work·,n-progress 

FInIshed goods 

Consumables slores 

Packing materials 

TOTAL 

8. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Particulars 

169.25 

47.59 

63.25 

11 .28 

21 .29 

312.66 

161 .25 

48.50 

72 .24 

8.32 

12.48 

302 .79 

~ in Lakhs 
-------

Asat 
31 " ~'.arch , 2024 

Asat 
31 " March. 2023 

-----------------------------------------
Unsecured, considered good 

Undisputed Trade receivable 

Disputed Trade receivable 

TOTAL 

8.1 Ageing olthe trade receivables as at 31" March, 2024 

596.1 0 

41 .88 

637.98 

574.16 

44.88 

619.04 

~ in Lakhs 

Pa rticulars I Current Outstanding as at 31st March , 20241;om due date 01 payment 

I but not Total 

ndlsputed Trade Receivables I U 
Co 
o 
Co 
TO 

nSldered Good 
isputed Trade Receivables 

nSldered Good 

TAL 

due 

521 .92 

. 
521.92 

Less than 6 16 Months· 
Months 1 year 

13.35 12.26 

. -
~3,35 12.26 

8.2 Ageing olthe trade receivables as at 31" March, 2023 

1·2 .I. 2· 3 More than 3 
years years years 

I 

4.26 7.88 36.43 596 .10 

. . 41 .88 41 .88 

4.26 7.88 78.31 637.98 

~ in Lakhs 

Particulars Current Outstanding as at 31st March, 2023Ir.)m due date 01 payment 
Total but not Less than 6 6 Months· 

~ 

More than 3 

" j 
2- 3 

due Months 1 year years _ years years 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
Considered Good 464.52 24.46 23.()7 8.28 38.27 15.54 574.14 
Disputed Trade Receivables 

I 

Considered Good - - - . 1.36 43 .52 44 .88 . -
TOTAL 464.52 24.46 23.07 8.28 39.62 59.05 619.02 

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31 " ·~Iarch , 2024 31" March. 2023 

Balance With Banks 

'n Current accounts 0.23 0.89 

In EEFC accounts 0.00 

-In Deposit accounts 0.39 0.37 

Cashon Hand 0.06 0.03 

TOTAL 0.68 1 29 49 
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10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars 

Unsecured. considered good 

Securlly Deposils 

Loans 10 Siaff 

Interest Accrued on Deposits 

TOTAL 

11 . OTHER CURRENT ASSET 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid Expenses 

Ba lance with GovernmentAuthontles 

. Balance Wilh GST Aulhorily 

. VAT credil receivable 

Income Tax (nel) 

Advances to suppliers 

TOTAL 

12. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars 

Asat 
31 " l\Iarch, 2024 

1.79 

1,50 

1.27 

4.56 

Asat 
31 " ~ Iarch , 2024 

5.67 

0.70 

8.04 

13.26 

12.21 

39.88 

Asat 
31 " '<larch, 2024 

-----------------------
(a) Authorised 

1.00.00.000 (l.OO,OC,OOO) EqUity shares of ~ 10 each 

(b) Issued 

77,00,000 (77,00,000) Equily shares of ~ 10 each 

(c) Subscribed and lully paid up 

76,74,600 (76,74,600) Equity shares of~ 10 each 

TOTAL 

1,000.00 

770.00 

767.46 

767.46 

12.1 The Reconciliation 01 the number ollhe shares outstanding is set out billow 

Particulars AS at 
31 " ~larch , 2024 

______________________________________________________ ~(I~~~oIShares) 

EqUity Shares al the beginning of Ihe year 

EqUily Shares at Ihe end of the year 

12.2 TermslRights aliached to Equity Shares 

76,74 ,600 

76,74 ,600 

~ in Lakhs 

Asal 
31"March,2023 

1.79 

1.79 

1.37 

4.95 

~ in Lakhs 

Asal 
31 " March, 2023 

12 .. 02 

0.77 

8.04 

7.70 

20.76 

49.29 

~ in Lakhs 

As al 
31 " March, 2023 

1,000.00 

770.00 

767.46 

767.46 

Asal 
31 " March, 2023 

(No of Shares) 

76 ,74,600 

76,74 ,600 

The COrlpany has only one class of EqUity Shares navlng a par value on 101- pershsre. Each holder of the Equily shares 
IS entitled 10 one vole per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Ind'''n rupees and every equity share is 
entitled to the same rate of diVidend. 

In the event of liqUidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be en~ ltled to receive the remaining assets 
of the company aftEr OIstribubon of all preferentlai amounts, in proportion to their Sh2:Hholding 
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12.3 Details ofthe Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares 

Name olthe Shareholders 

Mr Rajnikant K Shah 

[Include 8,03 .310 (1 0 47%) Shares of Rajnlkant K Shah (HUF) 
(Previous Year 8.03,310 (10.47%)) 

A)ayR Shah 

AbhayR Shah 

OipakKShah 

Asat 
31" 'vlarch, 2024 

Nool Shares 
~\i of holding 

16,08,204 

20.95% 

6,38 ,352 

8.32% 

8,01 ,632 

10.45% 

5,60,000 

7.30% 

12.4 Details olthe shares held by promoters equity sha res 01 ~ 10 each lully pa ,d up 

Promoter Name As at 31 March, 20,t~ 
No 01 the shares Change No of the shar,,"s % 01 Total 
as the beginning during as the end Shares 

01 the year the year 01 the year 

Rajntkant KOdarlal Shah 8.04 ,894 - 8,04,894 10.49 
R K Shah (Hut) 8,03 ,310 - 8,03,310 10.47 
Abhay Rajnikant Shah 8,01,632 - 8,01 ,632 10.45 
A)ay Rajnikant Shah 6,38,352 - 6,38,352 8.32 
Apama Ajay Shah 2,91 ,915 2,91,915 3.80 
Padma)a Ra)nikant Shah 2.32,600 - 2.32,600 303 
Mano) Vasanllal Mehta 230.500 - 2,30.500 3.00 
Jawahar Vasantla l Mehta , 205,000 - 2.05.000 2.67 
Minai Abhay Shah 1 61 ,865 - 1,61,865 

I 

2.11 
Jagruti Jawaharlal Mehta 66,000 - 66 ,000 0.86 
Dimple Mana) Mehta 49,000 - 49,000 0.64 -
Total 42,85,068 - 42,85,068 55.84 -

Asat 
31" March, 2023 

NoofShares 
% of holding 

16,08,204 

20.95% 

6,38,352 

8.32% 

8,01 ,632 

10.45% 

5,60,000 

7.30% 

% 01 change 
during 

the year 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

I 
-
-
-

Promoter Name As at 31 3~--------------------March, 202 
No of the shares Change No of the share --r~~~~-.'~~~~ S % 01 Total % of change 
as the beginning during as the end Shares during 

of the year the year 01 the year Ihe year 

Ralntkant Kodarlal Shah 8,04,894 - 8,04.894 
R K Shah (Huf) 8,03,310 

I 
- 8,03,310 

Abhay Rajnikant Shah 8,01,632 - 8,01 ,632 
A)ay Ra)nikant Shah 6.38,352 - 6,38 ,352 

10.49 
10.47 
10.45 
8.32 

Aparea A)ay Sha~ 2.9 1.915 - 2.91 ,915 3.80 
Padma)a Ralnlkant Shah 2.32600 - 2,32 ,600 3.03 
Manoj Vasantlal Mehta 2.30,500 - 2.30.500 3.00 
Jawahar Vasantlal Mehta 2.05000 2.05.000 2.67 
Minai Abhay Shah 161.865 - 1,61 ,865 2.11 
Jagrutl Jawaharlal Menta 66 .000 - 66 ,000 
Dimple Mano) Mehta 49 ,000 - 49 ,000 

0.86 

i 0.64 
Total 42,85,068 - 42,85,068 55.84 

51 
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13. OTHER EQUtTY 

Particulars 

Capital Reserve 

Balance at the Beginning 01 the year 

Balance at the end 01 the year 

Securities premium account 

Balance at the Beginning 01 Ihe year 

Ba lance attha end olthe year 

General reserve 

Balance at the Beginning of the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

Surplus I (Deficit) in Statement 01 Prolit and loss 

Balance at the Beginning olthe year 

Add/(less) Profitl(Loss) forthe year 

Balance althe end 01 the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Revaluat ion Surplus 

Balance at the Beglnnln9 of the year 

Balance at the end 01 the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Balance at the Beginning of the year 

Add: Addltlon/(Deducllon) dUring the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

TOTAL 

14. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS 

Particulars 

Secured 

Term Loans from Banks 

Working Capital Term-Loan 

TOTAL 

Asat 
31" ~Iarch , 2024 

1.20 

1.20 

778.45 

778.45 

52.82 

52.82 

(1,623.34) 

(47.35) 

(1,670.69) 

186.90 

186.90 

4 .97 

(1.87) 

3.10 

(648.22) 

Asat 
31 · \tarch, 2024 

567 .61 

567.61 

~ in Lakhs 

As at 
31 · March. 2023 

1.20 

1.20 

778,45 

778,45 

52.82 

52.82 

(1,528.30) 

(95 .04 ) 

(1.623.34) 

186.90 

186.90 

3 .99 

0.98 

4.97 

(599.00) 

t' in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 ' March . 2023 

672.82 

672.B2 

14 1 The Term Loans on Plant and EqUipment are secured by Equitable mortga;." of Factory Land and Building and 
hypothecation of Plant and EqUipment at Village Umraya , Taluka-Padra . District- Vadodara. These loans are 
further guaranteed by the working directors In their personal capacity. 
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14.2 Maturity Profile of the Term loans for Working Capital are set out as under 

Particulars As a! 

0-1 Year 

1-2 Years 

2-3 Years 

Above 3 Years 

TOTAL 

15. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Particulars 

31" March, 2024 

103.66 

101 .05 

101 .05 

365.51 

567.61 

671.27 

Asa! 
31 " ~Iarch , 2024 

--------------------------------------
Security DepOSIts Received 15.13 

TOTAL 15.13 -----------------------------------
16. NON CURRENT PROVISIONS 

Particulars 

ProvIsion for leave encashment 

Provision for gratuity 

TOTAL 

17. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS 

Particulars 

As a! 
31 " ."'arch, 2024 

10.28 

2.59 

12.87 

As a! 
31 " .\larch, 2024 

--------------------------------------
From Banks 

Secured 

Work 'ng capital loans - repayable on demand 

Current MatUrities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No: 14.2 ) 

Loans and advances from related parties 

Unsecured 

From directors 
TOTAL 

18. TRAOE PAYABLES 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small Enterprises 

Total oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small Enterprises 

Overdraft (over Issuance of Cheque) 

TOTAL 

400.00 

103.66 

13.80 

517.46 

Asa! 
31 " March , 2024 

27 .75 

266.50 

320.77 

615.02 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March, 2023 

109.62 

87.14 

101 .05 

484 .63 

672.82 

782.44 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March, 2023 

21 .13 

21 .13 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March, 2023 

8.79 

8.79 

~in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March, 2023 

400.00 

109.62 

1606 

525 .68 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 ' March, 2023 

8.92 

179.17 

321 .61 

509 .70 
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18.1 Ageing of the trade payables as at 31 " March, 2024 ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March, 2024 from duO! date of payment Total 
Unbilled Not due Less than 1- 2 2- 3 More than 

1 year years ),ears 3 years 

Total outstanding dues of micro - 27.75 - - - - 27.75 
and small Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of - 569.82 16.30 0.93 0.17 0.05 587.27 
creditors other than micro and 
small Enterprises 

-
- 597.57 16.30 0.93 0.17 0.05 615.02 

18.2 Ageing ofthe trade payables as at 31 " March, 2023 ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March, 2023 from du~: date of payment Total 
Unbilled Not due Less than 1- 2 2- 3 More than 

1 year years years 3 years 

Total outstanding dues of micro - 8.92 - - - - 8.92 
and small Enterpnses 

Total outstan d ing dues of 482 .84 17.87 0.01 - 0.06 500 .78 
creditors other than micro and 
small Enterprises -

- 491.76 17.87 0.Q1 - 0.06 509.70 
-

18 .3 There are no outstanding disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterp~jses and creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

19. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars Asat 
31 · Much, 2024 

---------------------------------------
Others Payables 
- Statutory Dues 

- Expenses payable 

-Advance Received from customers 
TOTAL 

20. PROVISIONS 

Particulars 

30.15 

18.83 

0.85 
49.83 

Asat 
31 ,. M£rch . 2024 

--------------------------------------

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 · March, 2023 

16.79 

14.81 

24 .67 
56.27 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 · March, 2023 

Provision for employee benefits 

-ProvlStor for leave encashment 14.38 9.48 

T_O_T_A_L _________________________________________________ ~14~.~38~ ________ ~9~.4~8 
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21 . REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars 

Sale of producls 

Processing Charges 

TOTAL 

21 .1 PARTICULARS OF SALE OF PRODUCTS 

Particulars 

Manufactured goods 
Prlntmg Ink 

Coatings 

Auxiliaries 

TOTAL 

22. OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 

~ in Lakhs 

For the !:ear ended Forthe year ended 
31"' March, 2024 31 " March, 2023 

2,340.14 

343.26 

2,683.40 

2,188.94 

100.57 

2,289.51 

~ in Lakhs 

Forthe year ended For the year ended 
31 "' March, 2024 31" March, 2023 

2,166.12 

40.48 

133.54 

2,340.14 

2 ,002 .99 

56 .89 

129.06 

2,188.94 

~ in Lakhs 

For the " ear ended For Ihe year ended 
31 · March, 2024 31" March, 2023 

----------------------------------------------
Operation income 

Interest received 
Sad Debl Recovered 
Olher Income 

Net Profit on foreign currency transactions and translation (Net) 

TOTAL 

23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Particu lars 

Raw material consumed 

Opening stock 

Add: Purchases 

Less ' Closing stock 

Cost of raw matenal consumed 

Packing material consumed 

Opening stock 

Add : Purchases 

Less ' ClOSing Stock 

Cost of packing malenal consumed 

1.78 

0.76 
0,08 

3.89 

6.51 

Forthe year ended 
31 " March, 2024 

161 .25 

1,606.74 

1,767.99 

169.25 

1,598.74 

12.48 

177.68 

190. 16 

21.29 

168.87 

2.37 

1.60 

3.32 

9.38 

16.67 

~ in Lakhs 

For Ihe year ended 
31"' March, 2023 

199.11 

1,474 .72 

1,673 .83 

161 .25 

1,512.57 

13.35 

134.46 

147.81 

12.48 

135.33 
----------------------------------------~~ 

1647.91 TOTAL 1,767.61 
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23.1 PARTICULARS OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED ~ In Lakhs 

Particulars Forthe year ended Forthe year ended 
31" r,larch, 2024 31 · March, 2023 

--------------------------------------
Chemicals 

Pigment 

Resins 

011 and miscellaneous 

TOTAL 

185.81 

625.88 

397.27 

389.78 

1,598.74 

228.83 

567.32 

347 .38 

369 .05 

1,512.57 

23.2 PARTICULARS OF IMPORTS AND INDIGINIOUS CONSUMPTION AND PERCENTAGE OF CONSUMPTION 

~ in Lakhs 

Particulars 

Raw material consumed 

Imported 

Indigenous 

TOTAL 

Percentage raw material consumed 

Imponed 

Indigenous 

TOTAL 

For the ~, ear ended Forthe year ended 
31" March, 2024 31 " March,2023 

102.32 9602 

1,496.42 1,416.56 

1,598.74 1,512.57 

6.40% 6.35% 

93.60% 93.65% 

100.00% 100.00% 

24 . CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRt=SS { in Lakhs 

Particulars For the '{ear ended For the year ended 
31" March, 2024 31 · March, 2023 

Inventories (at close) 

Finished Goods 63.25 72.24 

Work-in-Progress 47.59 48.50 

110.85 120.74 

Inventories (at commencement) 

FInished goods 72.24 54 .91 

Work-in-Progress 48.50 62.47 

120.74 117.38 

TOTAL 9.89 (3.36) 
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25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars For th£l vear ended For the year ended 
31 · March, 2024 31" March. 2023 

Salary 76.22 70.98 

Contribution to provident and other funds 8.68 8.78 

Staff welfare expenses 3.06 2.50 

TOTAL 87.96 82.27 

25 1 As per Ind Accounting Standard 19 (Revised)" Employee Benefits". the disclosure as defined in the Accounting 
Standard are given below: 

Defined Contribution Plan 

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expenses for the year as ur,der: ~ in Lakhs 
--------------------

Particulars Forth. , year ended For theyearended 
31 " lnarch, 2024 31 " March, 2023 

Employer's contribution to provident fund 7 .72 7.18 

TOTAL 7.72 7.18 

Defined Benefit Plan 

(I) Recognition of Opening and Closing Balances of Defi ned Benefit Obligatio .• of Gratuity and Fair Value of the 
Plan Assets (Funded) tin Lakhs 

Particulars Forthe vear ended For the year ended 
31 " March, 2024 31 " March. 2023 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the Year 

Current servIce cost 

Past service cost 

Interest on defined benefit obligation 

Remeasurements dLe to 

·Aciuanalloss/(gain ) arising from change in financial assumptions 

-Actuartallossf(gatn) arising from change in demographic assumptions 

-Actuarialloss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 

Benefit paid 

Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the year 

Fair value Gf the plan assets at the beginning of the year 

Employer contr but Ion 

Interest on plan assets 

Administration expenses 
Remea surements due to 

-Actual retum on plan assets less interest on plan assets 

Benefit pa id 

Fair value of the plan assets at the end ufthe Year -----------------------

36.83 

1.71 

1.94 

0.32 

1.24 

42.04 

36.96 

0.10 

2.69 

(0.30) 

39.45 

35.91 

1.83 

2.50 

(0.44) 

(0.93) 

(2.04) 

36.83 

36.66 

2.73 

(0.39) 

(2.04) 

36.96 
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(II) Reconciliation olthe FairValue olthe Plan Assets and Defined Benefit Obligation ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars ----~~=-~----~~ For the year ended For the year ended 
31" March, 2024 31 " March , 2023 ----------- ---------------------------------_ .. 

Falrvalue of the plan assets 

Present value of the obligation 

Amount recognised in the balance sheet 

(III) Expenses Recognised During the year 

Particulars 

39.45 

42.04 

2.59 

For the "jear ended 
31' March, 2024 

36.96 

36.83 

(0 .13) 

~ in Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 " March , 2023 

--------------------------------------------
Current service cost 

Inleresl on net defined benefit I,abilily I(assel ) 

TOTAL 

(IV) Investment Details 

Particulars 

Insured managed funds 

TOTAL 

(V) Actuarial Assumptions of Gratuity 

Particulars 

1.71 

(0.76) 

0.95 

For the year ended 
31 ··' flf.arch, 2024 

100% 

100% 

Forthf, 'year ended 
31' fAarch, 2024 

1.83 

(0.23) 

1.60 

For the year ended 
31 · March. 2023 

100% 

100% 

Forlhe year ended 
31" March , 2023 

--------------------------------------
Discount rale (per annum) 7.20% 7.45% 

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) _ 6.00% 6.00% 
The discount ra te IS based on the prevai ling market yields of Indian government seeL'1 !ties as at the balance sheet date for 
Ihe esllmated term oflhe obligations, 
The estimates of future salary Increases considered takes into account the inflat on , seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors. 

26. FINANCE COSTS ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars For thl> ,ear ended For Ihe year ended 
31 "·March, 2024 31 " March ,2023 

--------------------------------------
Inleresl expense on 

Borrowings 

Other borroWing costs 

TOTAL 

27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Particulars 

Depreciation and amortisation 

TOTAL 

140.50 

4.33 

144.83 

144.24 

5,13 

149.37 

~ in Lakhs 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31" March, 2024 31 " March , 2023 

93.04 98.27 

93.04 98.27 
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28. OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Manufacturing Expenses 

Power and fuel 

Factory expenses 

Wages and tabour cha rges 

Repairs to machinery 

Esta blishment Expenses 

Rent 

Repairs [0 building 

Insurance 

Rates and taxes 

Communication expenses 

Loss on sale of assets (Net) 

Travelling and conveyance 

Printing and stationary 

Legal and professional charges 

Payment to auditors (refer note no. 28 2) 

Motor car expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Sell ing and Distribution Expenses 

Freight and forwarding 

Sales commission and discount 

TOTAL 

28.1 VALUE OF tMPORTS ON CIF BASIS IN RESPECT OF 

Particulars 

Raw materials 

28.2 PAYMENTTO AUDITORS 

(Excluding GST) 

Particulars 

For the 'lear ended 
31"' March, 2024 

137.15 

19.62 

262.52 

50.21 

469.50 

8.88 

0.13 

8.41 

0 .71 

3 .12 

0.03 

10.19 

1.72 

34.85 

2.29 

13.47 

18.78 

102.58 

45.35 

16.50 

61 .85 

633.93 

For thO' :tear ended 
31 " fAarch , 2024 

102.28 

For the year ended 
31 " IAarch, 2024 

------------------------------------~ 
Audit fees and limited review fees 
Tax Audlifees 
Certification charges 
Out of pocket expenses 
TOTAL 

1.37 
0.71 
0.07 
0.14 
2.29 

~in Lakhs 

Forthe year ended 
31 " March, 2023 

81 .94 

18.22 

136.04 

29.79 

265.99 

9.03 

0 .31 

9 .27 

0 .71 

3 .81 

0.63 

11 .38 

1.07 

34.39 

2.50 

14.64 

16.82 

104.56 

42 .70 

13.51 

56.21 

426.76 

~ in Lakhs 

Forthe year ended 
31 " March, 2023 

44 .13 

~ in Lakhs 

Forthe year ended 
31 " March, 2023 

1.37 
0.71 
0.09 
0.33 
2.50 
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic and Oiluted Earnings Per Share ~ In Lakhs 

Particulars Far the !Iear ended Forthe year ended 
________________ . ___________ ...:3'-'1'-" ~na rch , 2024 31 " March. 2023 

Net Profit/(Ioss) aftertax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to 

equity shareholders (~in Lakhs) (47.35) (95.04) 

Weighted average numbers of equity shares used as denominator for calcu lating 

EPS 76,74,600 76.74.600 

(1 .24 ) 

10 

BasIc and diluted earnings per share 

Face value per equity shares 

30. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

Particulars 

Purchases of raw material 

31. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

Particulars 

FOB value of exports 

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

(0.62) 

10 

~ in Lakhs 

Far the 'lear ended Forthe year ended 
31" March, 2024 31 " March. 2023 

102.32 96.02 

~ in Lakhs 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31" March , 2024 31 " March. 2023 

187.56 148.57 

As per the Ind Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 "Related Party" . the disclosures of ;ransactions with related perties are 
given below 

(I) List of the related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transaction have taken place and 
relationships 

Name of the Related Parties 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 

Mr Ajay R Shah 

Ms Ashwini Lad 

Mr. Shudhir R Shah 

Arati Shah &Associaies (MsAarti Shah) 

Mr. Dipakkumar K Kanbar 

Mr. Ashwinkumar H. Raval 

Mr. Rajnikant K Shah 

Relationship 

Key Management Personal 

Ke y, Management Personal 

Ke f' Management Personal 

Key Management Personal 

Relative of Key Management Personal 

Ke'y' Management Personal 

Ke f Management Personal 

Relative of Key Management Personal 
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--------------------
(II) Transactions during the year with related parties 

-----------
Nature of the transaction Forthe ',<ar ended 

31 " March , 2024 
--------------------------------------
(a) Remuneration to key management personnel 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 

Mr Ajay R Shah 

Mr Shudhir R Shah 

(b) Professional Fees 

Mr Rajnikant K Shah 

Aratl Shah & Associates (MsAartl Shah) 

(c) Sttting Fees 

Ms. Ashwinl Lad 

Mr Dlpakkumar K Kanbar 

Mr Ashwlnkumar H. Raval 

(til) Balances outstanding 

Particulars 

Unsecured Loans 

Mr Abhay R Shah 

Mr AJay R Shah 

Professional Fees Payabte 

Mr RaJnikant K Shah 

Remuneration to Key Management Personal Payable 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 

Mr AJay R Shah 

23.tO 

14.08 

4 .69 

4.20 

0.23 

0.60 

0.60 

0.60 

Asat 
31 " March, 2024 

0.45 

13.35 

1.14 

0.82 

~ in Lakhs 

For the year ended 

31 " March. 2023 

23 .10 

14.08 

4.08 

4.20 

0 .24 

0.60 

0.45 

0.60 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March, 2023 

1.02 

15.04 

0.25 

1.34 

0 .83 

33. The Company does not have different segments and hence segment wise reporting in terms of the Ind Accounting 
standard (I nd AS) 108 "Operating Segment" is not applicable. The Company mainl'/ deals printing Inks and auxiliaries 
which IS considered as a one segment only. Geographical segment is not material al,·j hence not required to be disclosed 
separately. 
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34. Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 

Under the Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd 
October 2006 certain disclosures in terms of sectIon 22 are required to be made re lating to Micro and Small Enterprises 
the following information is compiled on the basis of the information and records avai lflole w ith the management. 

Particulars 

Principal amount remaining unpaid as at the yearend 

Interest due thereon 

Amount of Interest paId by the company In terms of section 16 of the 

MSMED along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day dunng the accounling year 

Amounl of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during 

the year) but without adding the in terest specified underthe MSMED 

Act 2006 

Amount of Interest Accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 

Accounting year 

35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES I ASSETS (NET) 

Part iculars 

Deferred tax liability 

Related to Depreciation difference affixed assets 

Deferred tax asset 

Disallowances and Unabsorbed Business Loss and Depreciation under 

the Income Tax 1961 

Deferred tax liability/(asset) (net) 

For the :/ear ended 

31" '~arch , 2024 

27.75 

0.69 

0.69 

Asa! 

31 · f~arch , 2024 

88.77 

(291.40) 

(202.63) 

~ in Lakhs 

For the yea r ended 

31" March , 2023 

8.92 

0.20 

0.20 

~ in Lakhs 

Asal 

31 " March. 2023 

101.39 

(289.10) 

(187.71 ) 

35.1.ln terms of Ind Accounting Standard (Ind AS ) 12- "Income Taxes". the Company has Deferred Tax Assets as on 31st 
March 2022. In terms of the said Standard, in view of unabsorbed depreciation and unabsorbed business losses under 
the tay. Jaws , net result of computation IS net deferred tax assets. Hence, the managwn ent has decided not to incorporate 
the same in the books of accounts as a matter of prudence and in absence of vi riua l ce rtainty as to its realization. 

36. Subject to Note No. 37 on Trade Receivables , in the opinion of the management current and non current assets are 
recoverable In normal course of the Business. 

37 Doubtful Trade receivables include: 

Particulars 

Oebts d oubtful of recovery 

Trade receivables for which suns have been ftled for recovery 

Other Trace receivable where suits nave not been filed 

Asa! 

3 1 · r~a rch , 2024 

41.88 

44.31 

~ in Lakhs 

Asal 

31" March. 2023 

44.88 

53.81 

38. The proVisions of the section 135 In respect of corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the company as the 
company is not falling under any Criteria of the said proVisions 
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Particulars Asat 
31 " IAarch, 2024 

----------------------------------------------
(I) Contingent Liabilities 

• Bank Guarantee 

. Third party guarantee in favour of cus tomer 

(II) Commitments 

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remain ing to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for 

- Tangible Asse[s 

- lnlan910le Assets 

(b l Other Commitments 

40. SOCIAL SECURITY CODE 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

~ in Lakhs 

As at 

31 " March, 2023 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

The Indian Parl iament has approved the Code on Social Security. 2020 Cthe Code') .... nich , inter alia . deals w ith employee 
benefits during employment and post employment. The Code has been published :11 the Gazetle of India . The effective 
date of the Code is yel to be not ified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet 10 be issued. In view of 
Inls, the Impact afthe change. jf any, will be assessed and recogn ized post notificatio!",; afthe relevant provisions. 

41 . Additional regulatory informalion required by Schedule III to the Compani·.s Act, 2013 

(II The Company does not have any benami property held in its name No proc""dings have been initiated on or are 
pend ing against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami ·'ransactions (Prohibit ion) Act. 1988 
(45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder. 

(i i) The Company has not been decla red wilful defaul ter by any bank or fin .3ncial institution or other lender or 
governmen t or any government authori ty. 

(tii) There 15 no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in ta>: ..3ssessments under the Income Tax 
Act. 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

(iv) The Company has not traded or Invested In crypto currency or virtual currency juring the year. 

(v) The Company does not have any charges or salisfact ion of charges which is vet to be registered with Registrar of 
Companies beyond the sta tutory period . 

(v i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity. including foreign ''"tities ("I ntermediaries") with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writ ing or otherwise) that the IntenmedialY shal l, whether directly or indirectly 
lend or Invest In other personsfentlties identified in any other manner whalsoeller by or on behalf of the Company 
Cultlmate benefiCiaries') or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

IVII) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), ·ncluding foreign entit ies ("Funding 
party") w ilh the understanding (whether recorded in writing or olherwise) Ihat t~ " Company shall directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoeve.· oy or on behalf of the Funding party 
(uillmate beneficianes): or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf :-f the ultimate beneficiaries. 

(viii) The Company does not have any transactions wi th companies struck off. 

(i x) The Company has complied With the requirement w ith respect to numberoflay~rs as prescribed under section 2(87) 
of the Companies Act. 2013 read w ith the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules. 2017. 

42. The above audited finanCial statemenls have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Company at the meetings held on 23rd May. 2024. 

43. Previous yea r' s fi gures have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classi fication f disclosu re. 
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44. Financial risk management 
The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign ""rrency risk and interest risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk . The Company 5 overall financial risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's finanCial performance. 

i. Market Risk 

Market rate IS the risk that arises from changes in market prices, such as com~c,dity prices, foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates etc. and will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 
obJecltve of market risk management IS to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, 
whi le optimising returns. 

a Commodity Price Risk 

Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuat ions In prices of raw materials and other products . The company 
has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in 
commodity prices and fngh t coSts. 

o Interest Rate Risk 

The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rste relates to the floating the debt 

obligations 

c. For~l9llCurren9' Exchange Rate Risk 

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potent ial impact on the Statement of Profit & Loss. 
where transaction references more than one currency orwhere assets/liabilitif!s are denominated in currency other 
than functional currency of the entity. Considering the countries and econornic development in which Company 
operates , its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchanne ra tes in those countries. The risk 
pnmarily relates to fl uctuations in US Dollar. 

Any movement In the functional cu rrency of operations of the Company against the major foreign currency may 
Impact the Company's revenue in International business. Any weaken ing of lhe functional currency may impact 
Company's cost of Imports and consequently the profit or loss. 

The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange 
rate risk . 

ii. CLedltRisk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the 
Compa ny. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of 
mitigating the risk of fina ncialloss from defaults. 

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties' financ"ll conditions . The Company's major 
classes of finanCial assets are cash and bank balances, trade rece ivables , SecJritydeposits , Advances to Suppliers 
and Employees and prepayments. 

As at the reporting date , the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is re~resented by the carrying amount of 
each class offinanclal assets recognised in the statements offinancial position . 

As at the reporting date. substantially all the cash and bank balances as detailed in Note 9 to the financial 
Information are held in major Banks Which are regulated and located in the India which management believes are of 
high credit quality. The management does not expect any losses arising from non-performance by these 
counterpanies. 

iii. Liqui~ity Risk 

IV. 

Liquidity risk arises from the Comp;:my's management of working capital. i: is the risk that the Company will 
encounter difficulty in meeting Its finanCial obl igations as they fall due. 

The Company has oblained fund based and non-fund based working capital c;edit facility from a bank. Company's 
policy is to ensure thai It will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due. The 
principal liabi lities of the Company arise in respect of the trade and other payabl~s. Trade and other payables are all 
payable within 12 months 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate surplus , banking facilities and reserve borrowing 
facilities by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows. 

The Company has a system of regularly forecast ing cash inflows and outflOlv" and all liquidity requirements are 
planned . 

Forecast for trade and other payables is regularly monitored to ensure timely fu .,ding . 

All payments are made Within due dates subject to availabil ity of funds. 

Capital Risk Management 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to ,..,aintain an optimal capital structure 
so as to support its bUSinesses . 
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Note 45- Ratios 

Ratio Numerator Den ominator Current Pr;\'ous % of Explanation· 
year year increase/ 

decease -
Current ratio (In limes) Total currenl assets Total current liabilities 0.83 .1.89 (6.25%) 

Debt-EqUity raho (in times) Deb t conSists of Tolal equity 9.10 7.11 27.91% There is a Increase 
borrowings and lease due to reduction of 
liabilities equity as compared 

lodebt 

Debt service coverage,Earmng for Debt Service = Debt service;: Inlerest 071 0.84 (15.72%) 
Iraltol1numes) Nei profit after taxes ... and lease payments + 

Non-cash opera t ing PrinCipal repayments 

E;lCpenses+lnterest - Other 
non-cash adjustments 

Return on equity ratio Profit for Ihe year less Average total equ ity (16%) (1 13%) (85.42%) The decrease is due 
(in %) Preference dividend (If 10 decrease in loss 

any) for the current vear. - The decrease Is due Trade receivab les lurn Revenue from operations Aver age I r a d e 4.27 7.40 (42.28%) , to increase In average 
love~ raho lin hmes) receivables trade reCeivables for the 

current year. -
Trade payables turnover Cost o( Maleflals Traded Avera ge tr a d e 4.29 8.13 (47.24%) The decrease is due 

raUO (in limes) Ie a 5 t of S erv ices payables 10 increase in average 
Rendered + o the r trade payables for the 
expenses current year. 

Nel capital tumover rat io Revenue from operations Average working (21 .68) ( t~ . 16 ) 13.16% 
(m llmes) capital ( I.e . Total 

current assets less 
Total current habilihes) 

-
!Ne! profit ra lio (In %) Profit for the year Revenue f fa m (2%) (4%) (57.50%) The decrease is due 

loperatlons to decrease in loss 
forlhe current year. 

-
Return on capital Profit before lax and Capi ta l employed - 82% 32% 153.52% The imerovemenl is 
employed {in %} finance costs Nel worth + Lease due to decrease In 

liabilities + Deferred loss for the current 
lax liabili ties year -

'Return on investment ,ncome generated from Avera ge Invested 0% 0% 

i(tn%) invested funds funds In Investments 

I 

• explanation IS prOVided (or any change 10 Ihe ratio by more thart 25°'0 as compared 10 the precedng year. 
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Registered Office : 
Unit No. 405, Atlanta Estate , 
Near Virwani Indl. Estate, , 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063. 
Ph. : +91-22-29276921 /29272114 

Factory : 
Block No. 395, 437, 450, 
Village Umraya, Taluka Padra , 
Dist. Vadodara - 391 440. 
Ph. : +91-266-2244080 
Email.:organiccoatingsltd@organiGcoatingsltd .com 
www.organiccoatingsltd.com 
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